November 20, 2020

NOTICE OF A REGULAR MEETING OF THE
LEAGUE OF ARIZONA CITIES & TOWNS
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
Friday, November 20, 2020 at 10:00 a.m.
Via Zoom Video/Audio Conferencing
Notice is hereby given to the members of the Executive Committee and to the general public that
the Executive Committee will hold a meeting open to the public on November 20, 2020 at 10:00
a.m. Members of the Executive Committee will attend by Zoom Audio/Video conferencing.
The Executive Committee may vote to recess the meeting and move into Executive Session on
any item on this agenda. Upon completion of Executive Session, the Executive Committee may
resume the meeting, open to the public, to address the remaining items on the agenda. A copy of
the agenda is available at the League office building in Suite 200 or on the League website at
www.azleague.org.

Agenda
All items on this agenda are scheduled for discussion and possible action, unless otherwise noted.

Call to Order; Pledge of Allegiance
1.

Review and Adoption of Minutes

2.

Election Results / Legislative Policy Overview and Update

3.

Recap of 2020 Virtual Annual Conference

4.

Cities and Towns Week 2020

5.

2019-2020 Audit Report

6.

Resolutions of Appreciation / Life Membership

7.

League Strategic Plan Update

8.

Executive Director Review

9.

Other Business

Additional informational materials are included in the agenda packet but are not part of the agenda.

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING
Friday, November 20, 2020

Agenda Item #1

Review and Adoption of Minutes

Summary:

Minutes of the previous meeting are enclosed for your review and
approval.

Responsible Person:

President Christian Price

Attachment:

September 10, 2020 Executive Committee Minutes

Action Requested:

Approval

MINUTES
LEAGUE OF ARIZONA CITIES AND TOWNS
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING
Thursday, September 10, 2020
Zoom
MEMBERS
President
Cathy Carlat, Mayor, Peoria
Vice President
Douglas Nicholls, Mayor, Yuma
Treasurer
Greg Mengarelli, Mayor, Prescott
Tom Brady, Mayor, Bullhead City
Craig McFarland, Mayor, Casa Grande
Kevin Hartke, Mayor, Chandler
Doug Von Gausig, Mayor, Clarkdale
Coral Evans, Mayor, Flagstaff
Jerry Weiers, Mayor, Glendale
Georgia Lord, Mayor, Goodyear
Thomas L. Schoaf, Mayor, Litchfield Park
Ed Honea, Mayor, Marana
Christian Price, Mayor, Maricopa

John Giles, Mayor, Mesa
Kate Gallego, Mayor, Phoenix
Gail Barney, Mayor, Queen Creek
W.J. "Jim" Lane, Mayor, Scottsdale*
Sandy Moriarty, Mayor, Sedona
Daryl Seymore, Mayor, Show Low
Rick Mueller, Mayor, Sierra Vista
Bob Rivera, Mayor, Thatcher
Anna Tovar, Mayor, Tolleson
Regina Romero, Mayor, Tucson

*not in attendance
President Cathy Carlat called the meeting to order at 10:03 a.m. She then led the Executive Committee
in the Pledge of Allegiance.
President Cathy Carlat congratulated Mayor Doug Nicholls who is now the Vice President and Mayor
Greg Mengarelli who is now the Treasurer. Additionally, President Carlat congratulated the Executive
Committee members who were reappointed, Mayor Craig McFarland, Mayor Kevin Hartke, Mayor
Doug Von Gausig, Mayor Coral Evans, Mayor Jerry Weiers, Mayor Jim Lane, Mayor Anna Tovar and
Mayor Regina Romero. Finally, she welcomed Mayor Kate Gallego as the newest member of the
Executive Committee. President Carlat also recognized Mayor Von Gausig for long tenure on the
executive committee.
Mayor Doug Von Gausig gave words of appreciation regarding his service on the executive committee
with the League.
1. REVIEW AND ADOPTION OF MINUTES
President Cathy Carlat requested a motion on the adoption of the minutes. Mayor Craig McFarland
moved to approve the minutes of the May 29, 2020 Executive Committee Meeting; Mayor Kevin
Hartke seconded the motion and it carried unanimously.

2. STATE AND FEDERAL LEGISLATIVE UPDATE
League President Cathy Carlat welcomed League Legislative Director Nick Ponder to provide the
legislative policy update.
Legislative Director Nick Ponder let the Executive Committee know that the biggest question moving
into 2021 is what the legislature will look like following the November 3 election. In general the
Republicans will be defending a number of seats this legislative cycle in both the House and Senate.
The House Republicans have the potential of one pick-up in district four; the House Democrats have
the ambition of multiple pick-ups, in districts six, 20, and 21, needing two pick-ups in the three
districts to take majority. In the Senate, Democrats also have several potential pick-ups that the
Republicans are defending.
Next year the legislative focus from the League’s Resolutions Committee will be: newspaper
publications with respects to paper being printed and published in municipalities; low income housing
tax credits; blight, which was a resolution last year, and short-term rentals, for a total of six items.
Although these six items will be the main focus, many different issues will be addressed in 2021, one
major issue being policing. Federally, Republicans are trying to receive a vote on a new COVID relief
bill. Several provision include liability relief, insurance continuation, payroll protecting, postal service
support, $105 billion dollars for back-to-school programs, and an extended deadline when money can
be spent from the relief fund.. This bill does not include state or local assistance, payroll tax cut, or
stimulus checks.
President Cathy Carlat asked Legislative Director Nick Ponder in regards to policing if there is any
precedent with local control and public safety.
Legislative Director Nick Ponder let President Carlat know at the Federal level, they were trying to
incentivize certain behavior by directing money to local government. Mr. Ponder will go back through
the letter to see if it was mandated at just the state level or also the local level and provide an update in
November.
3. LEGAL UPDATE
President Cathy Carlat called upon League General Counsel Christina Estes-Werther to provide a legal
update.
General Counsel Christina Estes-Werther reminded the Executive Board of the process of an amicus
brief. General Counsel Estes-Werther is contacted by city/town attorneys for a request for the League
to weigh in with an amicus brief, which happens at the appellate level. The request is first discussed to
make sure it is an issue that would widely affect most cities and towns. Then it is taken over to the
amicus committee comprised of city/town attorneys who then review all the materials and make a
recommendation to move forward with the amicus or not.
There have been five briefs that have been or will be filed. First, is with the Town of Florence
regarding a zoning ordinance. It was filed with the Court of Appeals since they lost at the trial court
level. The Town wanted to enforce their zoning ordinance and the trial court dismissed the zoning
ordinance and relied instead on information that Florence Copper brought forward. The biggest
concern for the League had to do with the attorney fees. Because Florence Copper brought forward
tangential documents outside of the zoning process, the court now saw this as a contract issue. This
meant that instead of a cap being placed on attorney fees for a statutory amount, the court awarded 1.7

million dollars to Florence Copper, which is a big hit to the Town. When the amicus brief was filed in
April, this issue was a large focus because it will have a chilling affect on cities and towns trying to
enforce their zoning ordinance. In June oral arguments were heard and now a decision is pending.
Next, is the State of Arizona v. Arizona Board of Regents. This has to do with a tuition case that the
Attorney General brought against the Board of Regents stating that the tuition rate was
unconstitutionally too high. It was dismissed based on a case known as McFate from the 1960s. The
decision states that it does not allow the Attorney General in absences of specific statutory power to
initiate an original proceeding. A petition was filed from the Attorney General with the court to
overturn the McFate case. The Board of Regents reached out to the League for assistance. The League
joined a current amicus being written by the chamber and other groups since we shared the same
interests. The concern for the League is that if the Attorney General is not narrowed to the specific
statutes of what actions he can bring, it is a 1487 on everything meaning they could bring an action on
any city or town for any issue. The brief was filed in March, oral arguments were heard in April, and a
decision is pending.
The third amicus brief is Phoenix v. Brnovich. This was the 1487 case, which dealt with prop 126;
what was really covered when they meant taxes and fees and whether or not state or local government
could increase or impose fees on ride shares. The court unanimously said that the Phoenix ordinance
was constitutional. The fees are not transactions under that prop 126 provision because the fees were
not based on the transaction between rider and driver but instead on using the airport property for
commercial purpose. This will be helpful going forward on constructing user fees. They touched
briefly on the bond issue, which they did not rule as unconstitutional but said they would not enforce it
until the legislature makes some changes. Lastly, the attorney fees issue with this case, $372,000 were
the attorney fees incurred and the Attorney General objected to this amount because the rates were too
high and said that any pre-litigation costs in this case should not be considered, which was concerning.
But, the court came back and said it was standard to include the pre-litigation costs and the Attorney
General did not include any evidence of the rates being too high so, they got the full amount which the
Attorney General will be paying to the city.
The next two cases have not yet been filed and are pending. The first is Schires v.Carlat, which has
been going on for several years. The City of Peoria was sued by Goldwater, alleging that the
development economic agreement violated the gift clause. There are two factors to determine violation
of a gift clause, the first is seeing if there is public purpose and second if there is adequate
consideration. Goldwater wants to prevent the public body from being able to determine public
purpose and the League is argue against it. Also, for the consideration aspect, Goldwater feels there is
zero consideration for economic development, which is being argued against as well. An amicus brief
had been filed with the court of appeals where the City of Peoria won in January but Goldwater has
filed a Petition for Review with the Supreme Court. If the Petition is granted another amicus brief will
be filed.
The fifth amicus brief to review is Humphrey v. State of Arizona, which has been going on for over a
decade. This has to do with a fatal car crash when a vehicle crossed the median on the I-10. The
League’s involvement has to do with the notice of claim provision. The plaintiff filed a claim within
the six-month period but never filed the actual lawsuit. A couple years later they filed a new notice of
claim to try and trigger the process again. The League highlights several problems with this such as
retention schedules, turnover of municipal staff and availability of resources. The court agreed that the
notice of claim by the plaintiff was deficient and threw out the case. On July 1 the plaintiffs have filed
a petition with the Supreme Court. If the Supreme Court does accept, an amicus brief will be filed.

President Cathy Carlat asked if the award of $372,000 in attorney fees on the 1487 case would be a
deterrent in the future.
General Counsel Christina Estes-Werther said that it could be going forward but hopes that because of
the decision the Attorney General in the future will take a step back.
4. UPCOMING ELECTION
President Cathy Carlat invited League General Counsel Christina Estes-Werther to provide a review of
ballot measures in the upcoming election.
General Counsel Christina Estes-Werther let the Executive Board know she will start with the Smart
and Safe Arizona Act, Prop 207, which has to do with recreational marijuana. Generally this act
permits anyone 21 years or older to transport, use, possess, and cultivate marijuana one ounce or less
without penalty. Additionally, a resident can have up to six marijuana plants. Marijuana cannot be
consumed in public places and if anyone is impaired, the individual may still be subject to violations,
but most penalties have been dropped and it is now a petty offense. Marijuana establishments can be
created, which are licensed by the Department of Health Services, DHS. The marijuana testing facility
is the DHS itself testing the potency of marijuana and for any harmful substances. The marijuana
establishments and testing facilities are regulated by cities and towns through zoning. These
regulations include specific areas where they can be built, the number of facilities, as well as the option
to outright prohibit them. They can regulate the time and place of these and prohibit delivery in the
jurisdiction. The delivery will be prohibited until DHS establishes rules. A city or town cannot prohibit
transportation of marijuana on public roads or enact an ordination that is more restrictive. There are
also provisions that employers still have rights to maintain a drug free work place. The state licensing
will accept applications starting January of next year. DHS cannot establish more than one license per
ten facilities. Expungement is also a provision in the act. If someone has on his or her record
something that is now lawful they can have it expunged or set aside. The Department of Revenue will
be able to collect a 16% excise tax on all marijuana products sold to consumers by establishment. A
city or town cannot collect additional taxes on top of that. 31.4% will go to public safety and 25.4%
will go to HURF.
Mayor Coral Evans asked if they have clearly defined what a reasonable standard is for cities and
towns.
General Counsel Christina Estes-Werther answered that it has not yet been clearly defined. Right now
it is looked at how cities and towns regulate medical marijuana for guidance and it cannot be more
restrictive than that. Currently, an attorney work group is drafting a model city ordinance to help with
this guidance and the draft will be sent out in the upcoming months.
Mayor Coral Evans also stated in Arizona you cannot expunge anything, only set aside and asked how
the previous charges will get expunged as stated in the act and if it is a process people will have to go
through or if it is automatic.
General Counsel Christina Estes-Werther agreed that yes, it will be a process and some of the money
in this new fund will go to non-profits to help people go through this process. Ms. Estes-Werther is not
sure if the court is going to look at this as a new process and now allow expungements or fit it into
current standards and do set asides.
Mayor Craig McFarland asked if the tax portion of 16% allows for sales tax on top of that.

General Counsel Christina Estes-Werther said that cities and towns cannot charge an additional tax on
the sale of marijuana or the products in addition to what the department is doing but it is tangible
personal property subject to the TPT.
Tax Policy Analyst Lee Grafstrom added that the retail rate will still apply but you cannot create a
higher rate for marijuana than the retail rate. But if your retail rate increases than it will also increase
for the sales of marijuana.
Invest for Ed is the second proposition, Prop 208. This is providing funding to advance public
education by establishing a 3.5% surplus on taxable income in excess of $250,000 in a taxable year for
a single or filing separately or excess of $500,000 filing jointly. These are deposited into a new Student
Support and Safety Fund. These are then distributed by grants for teacher and classroom support as
well as career training and workforce. Additionally, funds would go towards the Arizona Teacher
Academy in the form of scholarships.
When asked if the Proposition will pass, Legislative Director Nick Ponder added that the polling that
the League has heard of up to this point is that it is likely to pass.
President Cathy Carlat asked that if these funds coming in would not have limitations that currently
guide schools policies.
General Counsel Christina Estes-Werther agreed and said the funds are not going to be considered
local revenues, which currently provide the limitations.
Mayor Ed Honea said that the amount raised from this proposition is not enough.
Nick Ponder answered that there is commentary out there that this isn’t the right way to address the
issue, but the League is not going to take any positions.
5. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR EVALUATION
President Cathy Carlat explained to the Executive Board the new process for this year’s League
Executive Director evaluation. This survey will focus on leadership qualities and the League’s
operations. The survey will be sent out to mayors, managers, the Executive Committee, outside
agencies, legislative leadership, and League staff. The survey will be distributed by the Arizona Risk
Retention Pool and will be reviewed at November meeting.
Executive Director Tom Belshe mentioned that Legislative Director Nick Ponder had something to add
regarding body cameras.
Legislative Director Nick Ponder shared with the Executive Board that the letter the Senate and House
Democrats sent to the Governor’s office requested all police officers be required to wear body
cameras. This is a big budgetary issue for cities and towns if they do try and proceed with that.
Executive Director Tom Belshe let the Executive Board know that there are a number of vacancies that
need to be filled on the commission for model city tax code. If there is interest, he requested they reach
out to Executive Director Belshe directly.
President Cathy Carlat adjourned the Executive Committee Meeting at 11:06 am.

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING
Friday, November 20, 2020

Agenda Item #2

Election Results / Legislative Policy Overview and Update

Summary:

The First Regular Session of the Fifty-Fifth Legislature will convene on
January 11, 2021. At the time of printing, because of the COVID-19
pandemic, it is unclear how the legislature plans to proceed for
committee hearings and meetings with individual legislators but staff
will continue to keep a close eye on the issue and notify you
accordingly. Legislative staff have been finalizing language and doing
research on legislative items and will provide the Executive Committee
an update on the following topics:
• Smart and Safe Arizona initiative
• Municipal Policy Statement, League Resolutions
• Firefighter Cancer Presumption
• Policing Discussions
• Federal Update

Responsible Person:

Nick Ponder & League Legislative Staff

Attachments:

Election Results Analysis
Draft Municipal Policy Statement

ANALYSIS
The 2020 election reflected near-record
turnout, falling just shy of our record set in
1980. Just over 80% of registered voters in
the state voted in this cycle.
District-wide polls in conjunction with
attempts to correlate local with national
polls led to an expectation of a “blue
surge” and Democratic Party hopes of
flipping the state House and potentially
the state Senate.
However, the Arizona Republican party’s
ability to turn out voters who might not
typically turn out and canvassing efforts
benefited down-ballot results.
While Republicans were unable to win
the top of the ticket their efforts in the
remaining races should be considered a
success.

PRESIDENT

US SENATE

Donald Trump (R)

1,651,923

Joe Biden (D)
Jo Jorgenson (L)

The narrow margins of the 2018 cycle led
to optimism from Democrats for many
key legislative races.
Senate: In 2018 Sylvia Allen (R) of LD-6
beat Wade Carlyle (D) by a 1,712 votes.
However, because of turnout and issues
highlighted above Wendy Rogers (R) was
the clear victor in the 2020 race, claiming
victory by 11,583 votes.
Legislative District 17 also had a very
close Senate race in 2018 where JD
Mesnard (R) defeated Steve Weichert
(D) by 1,744 votes. Democratic hopes
were unrealized here as well where JD
Mesnard defeated AJ Kurdoglu (D) by
6,537 votes.
Legislative District 20 saw a 3-way race in
2018 which skewed analysis but in that
cycle Paul Boyer (R) defeated Doug Ervin
(D) by 2,818 votes. This election cycle
Paul Boyer again defeated Mr. Ervin by
4,663 votes.

1,628,282

Mark Kelly (D)

51,060

US HOUSE - CD6
David Schweikert (R)

1,707,421

LD4 - HOUSE
217,390

Charlene Fernandez (D)

39,997

Gerae Peten (D)

Hiral Tipirneni (D)

199,228

LD6 - SENATE

28,886

Joel John (R)

31,832

LD6 - HOUSE

Wendy Rogers (R)
Felicia French (D)

67,373

Walt Blackman (R)

59,321

Brenda Barton (R)

54,034

Coral Evans (D)

55,790

LD8 - HOUSE

KEY RACES

Martha McSally (R)

1,663,460

Art Babbott (I)

51,947
39,867

LD11 - SENATE

David Cook (R)

45,117

Frank Pratt (R)

43,799

Sharon Girard (D)

37,384

LD11 - HOUSE
Bret Roberts (R)
Mark Finchem (R)

Felipe Perez (D)

Justin Wilmeth (R)

68,176

Steve Kaiser (R)

67,442
60,915

60,500

Kristin Dybvig-Pawelko (D)

66,398
71,807

55,181

LD20 - SENATE
67,829

AJ Kurdoglu (D)

Joanna Mendoza (D)

71,757

LD15 - HOUSE

LD17 - SENATE
JD Mesnard (R)

Vince Leach (R)

61,292

LD20 - HOUSE

Paul Boyer (R)

52,655

Douglas Ervin (D)

47,992

LD21 - HOUSE

Anthony Kern (R)

47,017

Kevin Payne (R)

Shawnna Bolick (R)

49,207

Beverly Pingerelli (R)

53,383

Judy Schwiebert (D)

50,560

Kathy Knecht (D)

50,997

LD23 - HOUSE
John Kavanagh (R)
Joseph Chaplik (R)
Eric Kurland (D)

LD28 - SENATE
86,217

No

1,946,065

1,297,043

Kate Brophy McGee (R)

59,743

Christine Marsh (D)

60,253

80,184
65,160

SMART AND SAFE AZ - 207
Yes

57,749

INVEST IN EDUCATION - 208
Yes
No

1,667,642

1,555,315

Finally, Legislative District 28 was the one
race that Democrats seemed poised to
flip regardless of turnout. In 2018 Kate
Brophy McGee (R) defeated Christine
Marsh (D) by 265 votes. As of the most
recent update, Christine Marsh appears
to have defeated Kate Brophy McGee
by 510 votes. This is the only Democrat
net seat gain in the 2020 cycle.
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Democrats hoped for gains in legislative
districts 6, 20, 21, and 23 while
Republicans hoped to pick up a seat in
legislative district 4.
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LEADERSHIP
Senate Majority: President = Karen Fann,
Leader = Rick Gray, Whip: Borrelli,
President Pro Tempore = Vince Leach
Senate Minority: Leader = Rebecca Rios,
Asst. Leader = Lupe Contreras, Co-Whip
= Martín Quezada, Co-Whip = Victoria
Steele
House Majority: Speaker = Rusty Bowers,
Leader = Ben Toma, Whip = Leo Biasiucci,
Speaker Pro Tempore = Travis Grantham
House Minority: Leader= Reginald
Bolding, Asst. Leader = Jennifer Longdon,
Whip = Domingo DeGrazia
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The results of House races were that
Republicans picked up a seat in LD-4
where Joel John (R) defeated incumbent
Gerae Peten (D) and Democrats picked
up a seat in LD-20 where Judy
Schwiebert (D) defeated Anthony Kern
(R). The net result was republicans
holding a 31-29 majority in the House.
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House: In the House there were several
close races during the 2018 election
cycle that buoyed Democrats hopes of
flipping at least 2 seats. Their strategy of
more single-shot candidates was more
cohesive than their 2018 strategy.
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DEMOCRAT PICKUPS/LOSSES:
- Gerae Peten (LD4 - House)
+ Judy Schwiebert (LD20 - House)
+ Christine Marsh (LD28 - Senate)
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REPUBLICAN PICKUPS/LOSSES:
- Anthony Kern (LD20 - House)
- Kate Brophy McGee (LD28 - Senate)
+ Joel John (LD4 - House)

*as of 11/12/2020 at 12:00 pm

Overview
Cities and towns in Arizona are home to nearly 80% of the state’s residents and more than 90% of the state’s business
activity. They are the level of government closest to the people, most accessible to them and most responsive to their
needs. They provide the vast majority of first responder—police and fire—services and are national leaders in business
development, government efficiency and quality-of-life amenities. Arizona’s cities and towns are an essential part of
the continuum of government in our state.
Core Principles
The League of Arizona Cities and Towns is guided by two core principles:
1) Preserve local decision-making; and
2) Protect shared revenues.
Legislative Priorities
The League supports legislation respecting the role of municipal government and its core principles and opposes
measures that undermine them. The following policy priorities were developed with input from our members, approved
by the League’s Resolutions Committee, and will ensure that cities and towns can maintain the high-quality municipal
government services that businesses and citizens rely on.
• Support the creation of a housing tax credit to increase affordable housing and reduce
the costs of
and demand on public services as a result of a lack of housing
• Provide flexibility to cities and towns to publish or post public notices where it is most
accessible to the public to achieve maximum transparency at the lowest possible expense
• Support changes to state law to allow the use of consular ID cards as a valid form
of identification
City and Town COVID-19 Response and Impacts
In response to the unprecedented health and economic crises triggered by COVID-19, cities and towns are working
with local non-profits and community organizations to provide support to small businesses and residents facing
financial difficulties to pay rent and utility expenses. Cities and towns have made the following allocations for various
types of assistance:
• Small business recovery: $
• Non-profit assistance: $
• Utility assistance: $
• Eviction prevention: $
• Personal protective equipment to local schools and hospitals: $
• Food and shelter assistance: $
• Broadband and technology assistance for students: $
While cities and towns throughout the state are working hard to provide aid to struggling residents and businesses, they
too are experiencing the economic challenges due to reduced economic activity and loss of tourism revenue. Local
governments rely heavily on transaction privilege and hospitality taxes to balance their budgets. When these sources
of revenue decline, local elected leaders must make difficult decisions including cuts to municipal services like public
safety, parks or community services; delaying road construction or improvements to municipal facilities; or lay off their

workforce. This exemplifies the mutual relationship between local government and the business community: when
businesses thrive, tax revenue is generated and invested back into the community to provide services; when the economy
contracts, so do revenues that support public services.
As part of the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security (CARES) Act, Congress allocated specific financial relief
for states and local governments to endure some of these challenges. However, this measure did not account for the
massive reduction in revenue from lost tourism and economic activity. The information below illustrates these impacts
and identifies the cuts to essential services:

ECONOMIC EFFECTS

Arizona cities and towns are budgeted
and projected for shortfalls totaling over
$1 billion in local revenues in FY 21.
OTHER SOURCES

(TRANSPORTATION/IMPACT FEES/PARKS & REC)

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

$88.5 M

(UTILITIES/AIRPORTS/ETC.)

$387 M

UNANTICIPATED COVID-19 EXPENSES

LOCAL SALES TAX
$483 M

Graph denotes percentage of cities and towns accounting for unexpected
expenses in these categories.

BED TAX
$78.5 M

25%

50%

75%
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0%

IMPACT TO
ESSENTIAL SERVICES

Essential functions such as fire and police will also face cuts.

Essential services provided by municipalities
will be impacted due to revenue shortfalls
regardless of city or town size. Infrastructure
and capital projects will be the most
affected as declining revenues force
municipalities to delay critical needs,
further slowing an economic recovery.
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Karen Fann (R)
Judy Burges (R), Quang Nguyen (R)
Carefree, Cave Creek, Chino Valley,
Dewey-Humboldt, Peoria, Phoenix,
Prescott, Prescott Valley, Wickenburg

11.

Rosanna Gabaldón (D)
Andrea Dalessandro (D), Daniel Hernandez (D)
Nogales, Patagonia, Sahuarita,
South Tucson, Tucson

12.

S

Sally Ann Gonzales (D)
Andrés Cano (D), Alma Hernandez (D)
Tucson

13.

S

Lisa Otondo (D)
Charlene Fernandez (D), Joel John (R)
Buckeye, Gila Bend, Goodyear, San Luis,
Somerton, Tucson, Yuma

14.

S

Sonny Borrelli (R)
Leo Biasiucci (R), Regina Cobb (R)
Bullhead City, Colorado City, Kingman,
Lake Havasu City, Parker, Quartzsite

15.

S

Wendy Rogers (R)
Brenda Barton (R), Walt Blackman (R)
Camp Verde, Clarkdale, Cottonwood, Flagstaff,
Holbrook, Jerome, Payson, Sedona, Snowflake,
Star Valley, Taylor, Tusayan, Williams

16.

S

Jamescita Peshlakai (D)
Arlando Teller (D), Myron Tsosie (D)
Eagar, Fredonia, Page, Pinetop-Lakeside,
Show Low, Springerville, St. Johns, Winslow

17.

S

TJ Shope (R)
David Cook (R), Frank Pratt (R)
Casa Grande, Coolidge, Eloy, Florence,
Globe, Hayden, Kearny, Mammoth, Miami,
Superior, Winkelman

18.

S

Victoria Steele (D)
Randy Friese (D), Pamela Powers-Hannley (D)
Marana, Oro Valley, Tucson

19.

S

Kirsten Engel (D)
Domingo DeGrazia (D),
Stephanie Stahl-Hamilton (D)
Tucson

20.

S
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R

R

R

R

R

R

R

R

R

Vince Leach (R)
Mark Finchem (R), Bret Roberts (R)
Casa Grande, Eloy, Marana, Maricopa,
Oro Valley, Tucson

21.

R

Warren Petersen (R)
Travis Grantham (R), Jake Hoffman (R)
Chandler, Gilbert, Queen Creek

22.

R

Sine Kerr (R)
Tim Dunn (R), Joanne Osborne (R)
Buckeye, El Mirage, Glendale, Goodyear,
Litchfield Park, Surprise, Wellton,
Wickenburg, Yuma

23.

S

David Gowan (R)
Gail Griffin (R), Becky Nutt (R)
Benson, Bisbee, Clifton, Douglas, Duncan,
Huachuca City, Pima, Safford, Sierra Vista,
Thatcher, Tombstone, Tucson, Willcox

24.

S

Heather Carter (R)
Steve Kaiser (R), Justin Wilmeth (R)
Cave Creek, Phoenix

25.

S

Kelly Townsend (R)
John Fillmore (R), Jacqueline Parker (R)
Apache Junction, Mesa, Queen Creek

26.

S

J.D. Mesnard (R)
Jennifer Pawlik (D), Jeff Weninger (R)
Chandler, Gilbert

27.

S

Sean Bowie (D)
Mitzi Epstein (D), Jennifer Jermaine (D)
Chandler, Mesa, Phoenix, Tempe

28.

S

Lupe Contreras (D)
Diego Espinoza (D), Lorenzo Sierra (D)
Avondale, Phoenix, Tolleson

29.

S

Paul Boyer (R)
Shawnna Bolick (R), Judy Schwiebert (D)
Glendale, Phoenix

30.
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S

S

R

R

R

R

R

R

R

S
R

Rick Gray (R)
Kevin Payne (R), Beverly Pingerelli (R)
El Mirage, Peoria, Surprise, Youngtown

David Livingston (R)
Frank Carroll (R), Ben Toma (R)
Glendale, Peoria, Surprise

Michelle Ugenti-Rita (R)
Joseph Chaplik (R), John Kavanagh (R)
Fountain Hills, Scottsdale

Lela Alston (D)
Jennifer Longdon (D), Amish Shah (D)
Phoenix, Scottsdale

Tyler Pace (R)
Rusty Bowers (R), Michelle Udall (R)
Mesa

Juan Mendez (D)
Melody Hernandez (D), Athena Salman (D)
Mesa, Phoenix, Tempe

Rebecca Rios (D)
Reginald Bolding (D), Diego Rodriguez (D)
Guadalupe, Phoenix, Tempe

Christine Marsh (D)
Kelli Butler (D), Aaron Lieberman (D)
Paradise Valley, Phoenix, Scottsdale

Martín Quezada (D)
Richard Andrade (D), César Chávez (D)
El Mirage, Glendale, Phoenix

Tony Navarrete (D)
Robert Meza (D), Raquel Terán (D)
Glendale, Phoenix

S
R

- Senator
- Representative

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING
Friday, November 20, 2020

Agenda Item #3

Recap of 2020 Virtual League Conference

Summary:

Staff will give an overview of the 2020 Virtual League Annual
Conference and plans for the 2021 Conference.

Responsible Person:

Matt Lore, Deputy Director

Attachment:

Conference survey results

2020 League Virtual Conference

Q1 Day 1: Opening General Session - Update from the League President
and a Message from our three State University Presidents
Answered: 15

Skipped: 1

100%
80%
60%
40%
20%
0%

(no label)

Poor
POOR
(no label)

AVERAGE

0.00%
0

40.00%
4

Average
GOOD
40.00%
4

Good

Very Good

VERY GOOD

Excellent

EXCELLENT

10.00%
1

10.00%
1

TOTAL

WEIGHTED AVERAGE

10

2.90

#

PLEASE PROVIDE ANY COMMENTS ON THE SESSION HERE.

DATE

1

Disappointed in NAU President. ASU President was more on target and a better presenter.

9/19/2020 3:19 PM

2

I didn’t see it.

9/14/2020 3:32 PM

3

It's always a pleasure to get an update on what is going on with ACMA.

9/14/2020 12:06 PM
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2020 League Virtual Conference

Q2 Day 2: Resolutions Committee Meeting and Annual Business Meeting
Answered: 16

Skipped: 0

100%
80%
60%
40%
20%
0%

(no label)

Poor
POOR
(no label)

11.11%
1

Average

AVERAGE
11.11%
1

GOOD
11.11%
1

Good

Very Good

VERY GOOD

Excellent

EXCELLENT

44.44%
4

TOTAL

22.22%
2

WEIGHTED AVERAGE
9

3.56

#

PLEASE PROVIDE ANY COMMENTS ON THE SESSION HERE.

DATE

1

Good discussions around proposals.

9/19/2020 3:19 PM

2

Very interesting discussions.

9/14/2020 3:32 PM

3

30% of cities had no representation. Votes were tallied by percentages not by actual numbers
of ayes and nays.

9/14/2020 3:27 PM

4

Audio and visuals were very good. A little muffled because of masks. Otherwise, a good
alternative to in person meetings

9/14/2020 12:29 PM
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2020 League Virtual Conference

Q3 Day 3: League Legislative Update and Look Ahead
Answered: 15

Skipped: 1

100%
80%
60%
40%
20%
0%

(no label)

Poor
POOR
(no label)

AVERAGE

0.00%
0

7.69%
1

Average
GOOD
15.38%
2

Good

Very Good

VERY GOOD

Excellent

EXCELLENT

46.15%
6

30.77%
4

TOTAL

WEIGHTED AVERAGE

13

4.00

#

PLEASE PROVIDE ANY COMMENTS ON THE SESSION HERE.

DATE

1

Informative

9/14/2020 12:40 PM

2

Unable to attend

9/14/2020 12:29 PM
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2020 League Virtual Conference

Q4 Day 4: Pundits Session: Reading the Tea Leaves
Answered: 15

Skipped: 1

100%
80%
60%
40%
20%
0%

(no label)

Poor
POOR
(no label)

AVERAGE

0.00%
0

14.29%
2

Average
GOOD
14.29%
2

Good

Very Good

VERY GOOD

Excellent

EXCELLENT

21.43%
3

50.00%
7

TOTAL

WEIGHTED AVERAGE

14

4.07

#

PLEASE PROVIDE ANY COMMENTS ON THE SESSION HERE.

DATE

1

I enjoyed it very much except the discussions of the individual districts. Not really relevant to
many people.

9/14/2020 5:01 PM

2

Way good!! Was my favorite session. Very informative look ahead.

9/14/2020 3:32 PM

3

Interesting

9/14/2020 12:40 PM

4

Unable to attend

9/14/2020 12:29 PM

4/5

2020 League Virtual Conference

Q5 Please let us know how we can improve our virtual conference and
virtual meeting experience.
Answered: 7

Skipped: 9

#

RESPONSES

DATE

1

I was hoping for some "training sessions" the updates were good but not much on training from
subject matter experts.

9/15/2020 8:04 AM

2

I thought this was a great way to hold a virtual conference. I wouldn't sit for a full day (or
multiple days), but having one session each day was very doable.

9/14/2020 5:01 PM

3

It was good, but I sure miss the live conference.

9/14/2020 3:32 PM

4

Thought the virtual meetings were great! I could easily fit the sessions into my day without
needing to be out of the office.

9/14/2020 1:53 PM

5

Pleasant alternative

9/14/2020 12:29 PM

6

You all did very well under the circumstances. Perhaps in the future making it more interactive
would be beneficial, although I know that would be challenging!

9/14/2020 12:06 PM

7

I thought it worked well considering the limitations we'll all under

9/14/2020 11:51 AM
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EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING
Friday, November 20, 2020

Agenda Item #4

Cities and Towns Week 2020

Summary:

Update on 2020 Arizona Cities and Towns Week.

Responsible Person:

Matt Lore, Deputy Director
Samantha Womer, Communication & Education Associate

Attachment:

2020 Cities and Towns Week Information and Pictures

The League celebrated the 19th Annual Arizona Cities & Towns Week, October 18 – 24. This
week is set aside each year to provide citizens with important information about the services and
programs provided by their city/town, and to introduce the elected officials and employees that
deliver them. In 2020, we recognized the essential workers who continued to provide services
to their municipalities even during the COVID-19 Pandemic.

2020 Arizona Cities and Towns Week

2020 Arizona Cities and Towns Week

2020 Arizona Cities and Towns Week

AZ Cities & Towns Week Municipal Toolkit
To celebrate the 19th Annual Cities & Towns
Week and assist the cities and towns in
participating, the League once again created
an online toolkit, which featured a variety of
tools, including sample press releases, social
media messaging, and event ideas.

The League also created visuals that highlighted real
city and town heroes and distributed these over social
media throughout the week.

2020 Arizona Cities and Towns Week

AZ Cities & Towns Week Theme Calendar
Each day of Arizona Cities and Towns Week, the
League highlighted a different department or area
of a city. This engaged our municipalities to post
around a central theme each day of the week and
drew attention to the many amazing individuals
working in Arizona’s cities and towns.

2020 Arizona Cities and Towns Week

Proclamations
Many cities and
towns issued
proclamations to
let their citizens
know they were
participating in
Arizona Cities &
Towns Week.

2020 Arizona Cities and Towns Week

Press Releases, Websites & Articles
Other municipalities issued press releases
and updated their websites. A few news
outlets even helped spread the word about
the celebration!

2020 Arizona Cities and Towns Week

Social Media
Many cities and towns promoted the week
over social media and interacted with the
League through our social media accounts.

Facebook

2020 Arizona Cities and Towns Week

Twitter

2020 Arizona Cities and Towns Week

Twitter

2020 Arizona Cities and Towns Week

Thank you to all of our cities and towns who participated
in the 18th Annual Arizona Cities & Towns Week!

Instagram

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING
Friday, November 20, 2020

Agenda Item #5

2019-2020 Audit Report

Summary:

The report from the annual audit of the League of Arizona Cities and
Towns is presented for your review and approval.
The Property Corporation of Cities and Towns is a separate nonprofit
organization which owns and operates the League building. However,
rather than prepare a separate audit for the Property Corporation, our
auditors have recommended that it be included in the League’s financial
statement. The audit report you have implements that recommendation.

Responsible Person:

Tom Belshe

Attachment:

Audit Report for FY ended June 30, 2020

Action Requested:

Approval of Audit Report

Board of Directors
League of Arizona Cities and Towns
Phoenix, Arizona
We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the League of Arizona Cities and Towns (League) for the year
ended June 30, 2020, and have issued our report thereon dated October 27, 2020. We have previously
communicated to you information about our responsibilities under auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America and Government Auditing Standards, as well as certain
information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. Professional standards also require
that we communicate to you the following information related to our audit.
Significant audit findings
Qualitative aspects of accounting practices
Accounting policies
Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant
accounting policies used by the League of Arizona Cities and Towns are described in Note 1 to the
financial statements.
No new accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed
during 2020.
We noted no transactions entered into by the League during the year for which there is a lack of
authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial
statements in the proper period.
Accounting estimates
Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are
based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions
about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their
significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them
may differ significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimates affecting the financial
statements were:


Management’s estimate of the useful lives and remaining useful lives of capital assets is based
on the League’s previous experience and current condition of capital assets. We evaluated the
key factors and assumptions used to develop the useful lives and remaining useful lives in
determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Board of Directors
League of Arizona Cities and Towns
Page 2



Management’s estimate of compensated absences is based on employees who have currently
vested and those who are expected to vest. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions
used to develop compensated absences balance in determining that it is reasonable in relation
to the financial statements taken as a whole.



Management’s estimate of the pension liability is based on actuarial assumptions prepared by a
third-party actuary. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the pension
liability in determining it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Financial statement disclosures
Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to
financial statement users. Management has included a disclosure in its footnotes (Note 4E) related to
the COVID-19 pandemic and believes the District is taking the appropriate actions to mitigate the
negative impact.
The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.
In addition, following guidance within GASB Statement No. 38, management has determined that the
Other Post Employment Benefit Plan (OPEB) liability of the League is not material to the financial
statements and therefore has opted to not disclose the plan information. Further, management has
determined that the OPEB liability is not material to the League and does not add sufficient value to the
League’s financial statement users to warrant the significant additional disclosure required under GASB
Statement No. 75.
Difficulties encountered in performing the audit
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing
our audit.
Uncorrected misstatements
Professional standards require us to accumulate all misstatements identified during the audit, other
than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. The
attached schedule summarizes uncorrected misstatements of the financial statements. Management
has determined that their effects are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial
statements taken as a whole.
Corrected misstatements
None of the misstatements detected as a result of audit procedures and corrected by management
were material, either individually or in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole.
Disagreements with management
For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or
auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial
statements or the auditors’ report. No such disagreements arose during our audit.
Management representations
We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management
representation letter dated October 27, 2020.

Board of Directors
League of Arizona Cities and Towns
Page 3

Management consultations with other independent accountants
In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and
accounting matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation
involves application of an accounting principle to the League’s financial statements or a determination
of the type of auditors’ opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards
require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant
facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants.
Significant issues discussed with management prior to engagement
We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and
auditing standards, with management each year prior to engagement as the League’s auditors.
However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our
responses were not a condition to our engagement.
Other information in documents containing audited financial statements
With respect to the required supplementary information (RSI) accompanying the financial statements,
we made certain inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the RSI, including whether
the RSI has been measured and presented in accordance with prescribed guidelines, whether the
methods of measurement and preparation have been changed from the prior period and the reasons
for any such changes, and whether there were any significant assumptions or interpretations underlying
the measurement or presentation of the RSI. We compared the RSI for consistency with management’s
responses to the foregoing inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge obtained
during the audit of the basic financial statements. Because these limited procedures do not provide
sufficient evidence, we did not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI.
Our auditors’ opinion, the audited financial statements, and the notes to financial statements should
only be used in their entirety. Inclusion of the audited financial statements in a document you prepare,
such as an annual report, should be done only with our prior approval and review of the document.
* * *
This communication is intended solely for the information and use of the board of directors and
management of the League of Arizona Cities and Towns and is not intended to be, and should not be,
used by anyone other than these specified parties.

a
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP
Phoenix, Arizona
October 27, 2020

Board of Directors
League of Arizona Cities and Towns
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Summary of Uncorrected Misstatements

To record the OPEB Liability related to ASRS.
OPEB Liability

$

Unrestricted Net Position
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred Outflows of Resources
OPEB Expense
$

-

$

4,864

-

2,574

-

9,461

18,641

-

-

1,742

18,641

$

18,641
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Board of Directors
League of Arizona Cities and Towns
Phoenix, Arizona
Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the League of Arizona Cities and Towns (League), as
of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the League’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.
Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the League’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the League’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.

(1)

Board of Directors
League of Arizona Cities and Towns

Opinions
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the major fund, the aggregate remaining
fund information, and the General Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund
Balance – Budget and Actual of the League of Arizona Cities and Towns as of June 30, 2020, and the
respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis and the schedule of the League’s proportionate share of the net
pension liability and contributions, as listed in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the
basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance.
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
October 27, 2020, on our consideration of the League of Arizona Cities and Towns’ internal control over
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the League’s internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the League of Arizona Cities and Towns’ internal control
over financial reporting and compliance.

a
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP
Phoenix, Arizona
October 27, 2020

(2)

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
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LEAGUE OF ARIZONA CITIES AND TOWNS
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

We, the League of Arizona Cities and Towns (the League), are pleased to provide an overview of our
financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020. The intended purpose of the Management
Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is to provide an introduction to the basic financial statements and
notes, that provides an objective and easy to read analysis of our financial activities based on currently
known facts, decisions, and conditions, by providing an easily readable summary of operating results
and reasons for changes, which will help to determine if our financial position improved or deteriorated
over the past year. This report addresses current operational activities, the sources, uses, and changes
in resources, adherence to budget, service levels, limitations, and significant economic factors.
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
 While the League does not have any governmental authority, it is an instrumentality of the
incorporated cities and towns, created and operated for their benefit. It is governed by elected
city and town officials and its only members are the cities and towns of Arizona. Therefore, the
League reports under Government Accounting Standards based on the composition of
the board.
 The assets and deferred outflows of resources of the League of Arizona Cities and Towns
exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows of resources at the close of the most recent fiscal
year by $894,346 (net position). Of this amount, $369,156 is invested in capital assets while
unrestricted net position had a surplus balance of $525,190.
 As of the close of the current fiscal year, the League of Arizona Cities and Towns’ general fund
reported an ending fund balance of $2,358,669, an increase of $134,693 in comparison with the
prior year.
 At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was
$2,308,554 or 78% of total General Fund expenditures.
 General Fund revenues exceeded budgeted revenues by $199,914 for fiscal year 2020.
Expenditures exceeded the budget by $78,537 in the General Fund.
 General Fund expenditures exceeded revenues by $134,693.
 The League includes one separate legal entity in its report - The Property Corporation of
Arizona Cities and Towns. Although legally separate, the “component unit” is important because
the League is financially accountable. A description of the component unit is available in Note 1
on page 20. Separate Financial Statements are not available for this entity.
OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the League’s basic financial
statements. The League’s financial statements are comprised of three components: 1) governmentwide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the basic financial statements.
In addition to the basic financial statements, this report also includes a Report on Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit Performed in
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

(3)

LEAGUE OF ARIZONA CITIES AND TOWNS
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Government-Wide Financial Statements
The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of
the League of Arizona Cities and Towns’ finances, in a manner similar to private-sector business. The
statement of net position presents information on all of the League of Arizona Cities and Towns’ assets,
deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources, with the difference
between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve
as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the League of Arizona Cities and Towns is
improving or deteriorating.
The statement of activities presents information showing how the League’s net position changed during
the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event
giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and
expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal
periods (e.g., uncollected dues or fees and earned but unused vacation leave).
The governmental activities of the League of Arizona Cities and Towns include general government
expenses provided to support Arizona governments. The government-wide financial statements also
include the activity of the Property Corporation, reported as an internal service fund, included as a
blended component unit. The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 10 - 11 of
this report.
Fund Financial Statements
Also presented are the traditional fund financial statements for governmental funds. The fund financial
statements focus on major funds of the League, rather than fund type. A fund is a grouping of related
accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific
activities or objectives. The League of Arizona Cities and Towns, like other state and local
governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements. All of the funds of the League of Arizona Cities and Towns can be divided into two
categories: governmental funds and proprietary funds.
Governmental Funds – Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term
inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as balances of spendable resources available at
the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term
financing requirements. Since the governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term
spendable resources, while the governmental activities on the government-wide financial statements
have a longer term focus, a reconciliation of the differences between the two is provided with the fund
financial statements. The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 12 - 16
of this report.
Proprietary Funds – The League of Arizona Cities and Towns maintains one type of proprietary fund.
The internal service fund is an accounting device used to account for the activity of the Property
Corporation that owns and operates the League’s office space. Because these services predominantly
benefit governmental rather than business-type functions, they have been included within governmental
activities in the government-wide financial statements. The basic proprietary fund financial statements
can be found on pages 17 - 19 of this report.
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LEAGUE OF ARIZONA CITIES AND TOWNS
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
The notes to the basic financial statements (pages 20 - 33) provide additional information that is
essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial
statements and should be read with the financial statements.
Required Supplementary Information Other Than MD&A
Governments have an option of including the budgetary comparison statements for the General Fund
and major special revenue funds as either part of the fund financial statements within the basic financial
statements or as required supplementary information after the footnotes. The League has chosen to
present these budgetary statements as part of the basic financial statements.
The League reports the schedule of the League’s proportionate share of the net pension liability and
contributions following the notes to the financial statements on page 34.
Government-Wide Financial Analysis
Net Position
Net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. Table A-1
reflects the condensed statement of net position of the League at June 30, 2020 showing that assets
and deferred outflows of resources exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows of resources by $894,346.
The League does not currently have any enterprise funds that would otherwise be classified as
business-type activities; all funds are considered governmental activities.
Table A-1
Net Position
Governmental Activities
2020
Assets
Current and Other Assets
Capital Assets:
Nondepreciable
Depreciable (Net)
Total Assets

2019

Percent
Change

2,775,376

(3.2)%

51,611
317,545
3,056,875

51,611
326,483
3,153,470

(2.7)
(3.1)

231,544

326,367

(29.1)

193,906

442,796

(56.2)

103,893
1,896,017
2,194,275

99,633
1,931,588
2,474,017

4.3
(1.8)
(11.3)

Deferred Inflows of Resources

199,798

237,000

(15.7)

Net Position
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Unrestricted
Total Net Position

369,156
525,190
894,346

378,094
390,726
768,820

(2.4)
34.4
16.3

$

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Liabilities
Other Liabilities
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Due Within One Year
Due in More Than One Year
Total Liabilities

$
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2,687,719

$
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The League of Arizona Cities and Towns’ net investment in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings,
furniture, fixtures and equipment), less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still
outstanding is the majority of the League’s total net position. The League of Arizona Cities and Towns
uses these capital assets to provide services to Arizona governments and its members; consequently,
these assets are not available for future spending. The unrestricted net position can be used for
ongoing League operations. The League does not have any restricted net position, other than those
invested in capital assets.
Changes in Net Position
Governmental Activities. Table A-2 compares the revenue and expenses for the current and prior year.
The program revenues include charges for services and intergovernmental revenues that are clearly
identifiable to an operating function of governmental activities. The League’s revenues are not identified
with any operating function and are therefore reported as general revenues.
Table A-2
Changes in Net Position
Governmental Activities
2020
REVENUES
General Revenues:
Affiliate Group Contributions
Annual Conference, Seminars, and Meetings
Membership Dues
Risk Management
Rental Revenue
Other Income
Total Revenues

$

EXPENSES
Salaries and Employee Benefits
Annual Conference, Seminars, and Travel
Consultant and Professional Services
Executive Committee
Insurance
Membership Dues and Subscriptions
Office Supplies, Printing, and Rentals
Postage and Shipping
Rent, Utilities, and Communication
Maintenance Services and Agreements
Depreciation
Loss on Disposal of Capital Assets
Total Expenses

137,950
545,840
2,097,422
159,976
24,696
144,359
3,110,243

2019

$

136,950
600,263
1,912,145
155,769
23,050
155,795
2,983,972

Percent
Change

0.7 %
(9.1)
9.7
2.7
7.1
(7.3)
4.2
3.8
(9.1)
28.2
(5.4)
6.9
7.9
(12.6)
2.3
(10.8)
9.4
74.4
N/A
0.4

1,960,658
387,849
325,561
6,705
15,053
64,092
70,121
5,264
48,843
58,384
42,187
2,984,717

1,889,736
426,468
253,901
7,090
14,075
59,391
80,270
5,147
54,755
53,379
24,189
103,129
2,971,530

CHANGE IN NET POSITION

125,526

12,442

908.9

Net Position - Beginning of Year

768,820

756,378

1.6

768,820

16.3

NET POSITION - END OF YEAR

$
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894,346

$
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Revenues increased $126,271. The major increase in revenues included a $185,277 increase in
membership dues. The increase in dues averaged between 4-6% for cities and towns depending on
population changes. In addition, the City of Phoenix rejoined the League in January 2020 after a oneyear pause in membership. The dues increase was offset by a $54,423 decrease in annual conference
and seminar revenue.
Expenses increased by $13,187 over the previous fiscal year. The increase was primarily due to the
addition of long term consultant relationships and increases in personnel costs, offset with a decrease
in annual conference and seminar expense. The annual conference, seminars, and travel budget
categories are unpredictable and vary from year to year.
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE LEAGUE’S FUNDS
The focus of the League’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows,
and balances of resources that are available for spending. Such information is useful in assessing the
League’s financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful
measure of the League’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. The League
only reports one governmental fund - the General Fund. The General Fund is the chief operating fund
of the League of Arizona Cities and Towns.
As of the end of the current fiscal year, the League’s General Fund reported an ending fund balance of
$2,358,669, an increase of $134,693 in comparison with the prior year. As a measure of the General
Fund’s liquidity, it is useful to compare the General Fund balance and total fund expenditures. The
General Fund unassigned fund balance represents 78% of total General Fund expenditures.
In addition to the changes in revenues, the League reported a decrease in General Fund expenditures
of $138,593. The decrease was primarily due to significant capital outlay expenditures in the prior year.
This was offset with increases in long term consultant relationship costs. The annual conference,
seminars, and travel budget categories are unpredictable and vary from year to year.
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BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS
The League’s annual budget is the legally adopted expenditure control document of the League.
Budgetary comparison statements are required for the General Fund and all major special revenue
funds and may be found on page 16. This statement compares the original adopted budget, the budget
if amended throughout the fiscal year, and the actual expenditures prepared on a budgetary basis. The
League did not amend its budget during the fiscal year.
General Fund revenues of $3,083,230 exceeded budgeted revenues of $2,883,316 by $199,914 and
expenditures of $2,948,537 exceeded budgeted expenditures of $2,870,000 by $78,537.
The excess of revenues over budget was largely due to $131,685 excess revenues over budget for the
annual conference. The excess of revenues over budget was due to the unpredictable nature of these
budget categories. The annual conference revenues exceeded budget due to the usual variables that
affect each annual conference. These variables include registration fees, location, and sponsorships.
Every year is different based on the location of the conference as well as the economy at the time.
Typically conferences held in the Valley have a higher attendance rate than those outside of the Valley.
The FY20 conference was held in Tucson and attendance was anticipated to be higher than the prior
year. The League kept the budget consistent with the prior fiscal year; however, the current year
conference attendance exceeded expectations. Sponsorship revenue is highly unpredictable from year
to year.
Major expenditure budget variances during the current fiscal year included salaries and benefits falling
slightly below budget by $66,652, consultant and professional services exceeded budget by $120,041,
and rent, utilities, and communication falling below budget by $68,333. Salaries and benefits fell below
budget due to changes in employee positions and salary rates as well as a lower than normal increase
in premium rates. The consultant and professional services exceeded budget due to higher than
expected contracted attorney fees. The annual conference and travel line items exceeded budget due
to higher hotel costs for the annual conference.
CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION
The League’s capital assets for its governmental activities as of June 30, 2020 amount to $369,156 (net
of accumulated depreciation), a decrease of 2%. For government-wide financial statement
presentation, all depreciable capital assets were depreciated from acquisition date to the end of the
current fiscal year. Governmental fund financial statements record capital asset purchases as
expenditures, whereas the proprietary fund financial statements record capital asset purchases as
assets. See Note 3.A.2. in the Notes to the Financial Statements for further information regarding
capital assets.
Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following:
 Replacement of telecommunications system for $14,775.
 Installation of synthetic rye grass for $14,481.
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Table A-3 provides a breakdown of the capital assets of the League at June 30, 2020 and 2019.
Table A-3
Capital Assets (Net)
Governmental Activities

Land
Buildings and Building Improvements
Equipment and Furniture
Total Capital Assets

$

$

2020
51,611
297,833
19,712
369,156

$

$

2019
51,611
315,858
10,625
378,094

Percent
Change
-%
(5.7)
85.5

The League did not have any outstanding bonded indebtedness.
ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGETS AND RATES
The 2021 budget was constructed with minimal increases to overall expected revenues and expenses.
Spending will remain conservative.
REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the League’s finances for all of those
with an interest in the League’s finances and to demonstrate accountability for the use of those funds.
Questions about any of the information provided in this report, or requests for additional financial
information should be addressed to:
League of Arizona Cities and Towns
1820 West Washington Street
Phoenix, AZ 85007
Or visit our website at:
http://www.azleague.org
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LEAGUE OF ARIZONA CITIES AND TOWNS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2020

Governmental
Activities
ASSETS
Cash and Investments
Receivables:
Accounts Receivable, Net
Prepaid Items

$

2,595,670
34,935
57,114

Capital Assets:
Nondepreciable
Depreciable Assets
Total Capital Assets
Total Assets

51,611
317,545
369,156
3,056,875

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Outflow of Resources Related to Pension Liability

231,544

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Unearned Revenue
Accrued Wages and Benefits

35,912
157,994
459

Long-Term Liabilities:
Due Within One Year
Due in More Than One Year
Total Liabilities

103,893
1,896,017
2,194,275

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Inflow of Resources Related to Pension Liability

199,798

NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Unrestricted

369,156
525,190

Total Net Position

$

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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894,346

LEAGUE OF ARIZONA CITIES AND TOWNS
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS
Governmental Activities:
General Government:
Expenses:
Salaries and Employee Benefits
Annual Conference, Seminars, and Travel
Consultant and Professional Services
Executive Committee
Insurance
Membership Dues and Subscriptions
Office Supplies, Printing, and Rentals
Postage and Shipping
Rent, Utilities, and Communication
Maintenance Services and Agreements
Depreciation
Total Expenses

$

General Revenues:
Affiliate Group Contributions
Annual Conference
Membership Dues
Risk Management
Rental Revenue
Seminars and Meetings
Partnership Programs
Miscellaneous
Investment Income
Total General Revenues

1,960,658
387,849
325,561
6,705
15,053
64,092
70,121
5,264
48,843
58,384
42,187
2,984,717

137,950
531,685
2,097,422
159,976
24,696
14,155
79,102
17,918
47,339
3,110,243

CHANGE IN NET POSITION

125,526

Net Position - Beginning of Year

768,820

NET POSITION - END OF YEAR

$

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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894,346

LEAGUE OF ARIZONA CITIES AND TOWNS
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2020

General
Fund
ASSETS
Cash and Investments
Accounts Receivable, Net
Prepaid Items
Total Assets
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Unearned Revenue
Accrued Wages and Benefits
Total Liabilities

$

2,467,314
22,648
50,115

$

2,540,077

$

32,010
148,939
459
181,408

Fund Balances:
Nonspendable for Prepaid Items
Unassigned
Total Fund Balance

50,115
2,308,554
2,358,669

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

$

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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2,540,077

LEAGUE OF ARIZONA CITIES AND TOWNS
RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET
OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO
THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2020

Total fund balances for governmental funds

$

2,358,669

Total net position reported for governmental activities in the statement
of net position is different because:
Capital assets used in governmental funds are not financial resources
and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds. Those
assets consist of:
Governmental capital assets
Less: accumulated depreciation
Capital assets used in governmental activities

$

111,716
(93,783)
17,933

Deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions are
applicable to future periods and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.
Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions
Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions

231,544
(199,798)

Long-term liabilities, including compensated absences, are not due
and payable in the current period and, therefore, are not reported in
the governmental funds.
Net pension liability
Compensated absence payable
Total long-term liabilities

(1,896,017)
(103,893)
(1,999,910)

Internal Service Funds are used by management to charge the costs of
certain activities to individual funds. The assets and liabilities of the
Internal Service Funds are included in governmental activities in the
statement of net position
Total net position of governmental activities

485,908
$

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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894,346

LEAGUE OF ARIZONA CITIES AND TOWNS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

General
Fund
REVENUES
Affiliate Group Contributions
Annual Conference
Membership Dues
Risk Management
Seminars and Meetings
Partnership Programs
Miscellaneous
Investment Income
Total Revenues

$

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Salaries and Employee Benefits
Annual Conference, Seminars, and Travel
Consultant and Professional Services
Executive Committee
Insurance
Membership Dues and Subscriptions
Office Supplies, Printing, and Rentals
Postage and Shipping
Rent, Utilities, and Communication
Capital Outlay
Total Expenditures

137,950
531,685
2,097,422
159,976
14,155
79,102
15,632
47,308
3,083,230

1,934,348
387,849
318,041
6,705
8,675
64,092
58,598
5,264
128,667
36,298
2,948,537

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES

134,693

Fund Balance - Beginning of Year

2,223,976

FUND BALANCE - END OF YEAR

$

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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2,358,669

LEAGUE OF ARIZONA CITIES AND TOWNS
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds

$

134,693

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of
activities are different because:
Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However,
in the statement of activities, assets are capitalized and the cost is
allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation
expense.
Capital outlays - improvement costs
Depreciation expense
Net change in capital assets

$

14,775
(6,824)
7,951

Governmental funds report pension contributions as expenditures
when made. However, in the statement of activities, pension expense
is the cost of benefits earned, adjusted for member contributions, the
recognition of changes in deferred outflows and inflows of resources
related to pensions, and the investment experience.
Pension contributions
Pension expense

156,867
(178,917)
(22,050)

Compensated absences do not require the use of current financial
resources in the governmental funds and are therefore not reported
as expenditures in the governmental funds; however, the net change in
compensated absences is reported as a net increase or decrease
in the government-wide financial statements.

(4,260)

Internal Service Funds are used by management to charge rent for the
use of the facility owned by the property corporation. The net revenue
of the Internal Service Fund is reported with governmental activities.

9,192

Change in net position of governmental activities

$

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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125,526

LEAGUE OF ARIZONA CITIES AND TOWNS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Original and
Final
Budget
REVENUES
Affiliate Group Contributions
Annual Conference
Membership Dues
Risk Management
Seminars and Meetings
Partnership Programs
Miscellaneous
Investment Income
Total Revenues

$

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Salaries and Employee Benefits
Annual Conference, Seminars, and Travel
Consultant and Professional Services
Executive Committee
Insurance
Membership Dues and Subscriptions
Office Supplies, Printing, and Rentals
Postage and Shipping
Rent, Utilities, and Communication
Capital Outlay
Total Expenditures

136,950
400,000
2,021,866
156,000
38,000
67,500
13,000
50,000
2,883,316

FUND BALANCE - END OF YEAR

$

$

137,950
531,685
2,097,422
159,976
14,155
79,102
15,632
47,308
3,083,230

Variance
$

1,000
131,685
75,556
3,976
(23,845)
11,602
2,632
(2,692)
199,914

2,001,000
301,000
198,000
8,000
8,000
63,000
70,000
6,000
197,000
18,000
2,870,000

1,934,348
387,849
318,041
6,705
8,675
64,092
58,598
5,264
128,667
36,298
2,948,537

13,316

134,693

121,377

2,177,063

2,223,976

46,913

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES
Fund Balance - Beginning of Year

Actual

2,190,379

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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$

2,358,669

66,652
(86,849)
(120,041)
1,295
(675)
(1,092)
11,402
736
68,333
(18,298)
(78,537)

$

168,290

LEAGUE OF ARIZONA CITIES AND TOWNS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2020

Governmental
Activities Internal
Service Fund
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Accounts Receivable, Net
Prepaid Items
Total Current Assets

$

128,356
12,287
6,999
147,642

Noncurrent Assets:
Capital Assets:
Nondepreciable
Depreciable (Net)
Total Capital Assets
Total Assets

51,611
299,612
351,223
498,865

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Unearned Revenue
Total Current Liabilities

3,902
9,055
12,957

NET POSITION
Investment in Capital Assets
Unrestricted

351,223
134,685

Total Net Position

$

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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485,908

LEAGUE OF ARIZONA CITIES AND TOWNS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Governmental
Activities Internal
Service Fund
OPERATING REVENUES
Rental Revenue
Miscellaneous
Total Operating Revenues

$

OPERATING EXPENSES
Utilities
Repairs and Maintenance Services and Agreements
Accounting and Auditing
Insurance
Depreciation
Total Operating Expenses

129,696
2,286
131,982

25,176
58,384
7,520
6,378
35,363
132,821

OPERATING LOSS

(839)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment Income
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

31
31

Capital Contribution

10,000

CHANGE IN NET POSITION

9,192

Net Position - Beginning of Year

476,716

NET POSITION - END OF YEAR

$

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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485,908

LEAGUE OF ARIZONA CITIES AND TOWNS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Governmental
Activities Internal Service
Funds
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from Customers
Payments to Suppliers
Net cash flows from operating activities

$

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of Capital Assets
Capital Contribution
Net cash flows for capital and related financing activities

122,698
(96,003)
26,695

(18,474)
10,000
(8,474)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investment Income
Net cash flows from investing activities

31
31
18,252

NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year

110,104

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR

$

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH PROVIDED
BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating Loss

$

ADJUSTMENTS TO RECONCILE OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH
PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Depreciation Expense
Change in Assets/Liabilities:
Receivables
Prepaid Items
Accounts Payable
Unearned Revenue
Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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128,356

(839)

35,363

$

(10,313)
(674)
2,129
1,029
26,695

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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LEAGUE OF ARIZONA CITIES AND TOWNS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2020

NOTE 1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The accompanying financial statements of the League of Arizona Cities and Towns (the
League) have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America applicable to governmental units adopted by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB). A summary of the League’s more significant
accounting policies follows.
A. Reporting Entity
The League of Arizona Cities and Towns was established in 1937, and is a voluntary
association of all the incorporated cities and towns in Arizona. The League is comprised
of 91 members and provides legislative framework for municipal needs and concerns
and is a technical assistance resource for all of the incorporated communities in Arizona.
League policy is established by all members at the annual meeting and policy direction
is provided during the year by a 25 member Executive Committee composed of elected
officials from cities and towns around the state.
The accompanying financial statements present the League and its component unit
entity for which the League is considered to be financially accountable. Blended
component units, although legally separate entities, are, in substance, part of the
League’s operations.
Included within the reporting entity:
The Property Corporation of Arizona Cities and Towns is a nonprofit corporation which
was incorporated in 1970 as a 501(c)(4) by the incorporated cities and towns in the State
of Arizona to construct and operate the office space for the League and other
governmental units. The Corporation’s officers and board of directors consist of officers
and members of the Executive Committee for the League. The operations of the
Property Corporation of Arizona Cities and Towns are reported as an internal service
fund because the Property Corporation largely charges rent to the League and other
governmental entities. The activity is included in the governmental activities on the
League’s financial statements and is reported as a blended component unit because the
Corporation provides a financial benefit almost exclusively to the League of Arizona
Cities and Towns. Separate financial statements are not prepared for the Property
Corporation of Arizona Cities and Towns.
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTE 1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
B. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements
The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the
statement of activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the
primary government and its component units. The effect of interfund activity has been
removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which are normally supported
by intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities,
which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. The League did not
have any business-type activities.
The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a
given function or segment is offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that
are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include
1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods,
services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a
particular function or segment. Internally dedicated resources such as
intergovernmental, membership dues, fees and other items are reported as general
revenues rather than as program revenues. All revenues of the League are considered
to be general revenues.
Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary
funds. Major individual governmental funds are reported as separate columns in the fund
financial statements.
C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation
The government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the
economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues
are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred,
regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Significant revenues susceptible to accrual
include dues, seminars and meetings, risk management, annual conference and
investment income and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal
period. Monies received in advance of the revenue recognition criteria are reported as
unearned revenues. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and
available only when cash is received by the League.
Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues
are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are
considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon
enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the League
considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the
current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as
under accrual accounting, except expenditures related to compensated absences which
are recorded only when payment is due.
(21)

LEAGUE OF ARIZONA CITIES AND TOWNS
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NOTE 1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation
(Continued)
The League reports the following major governmental funds:
General Fund – the General Fund is the League’s primary operating fund. It
accounts for all financial resources of the League, except those required to be
accounted for in another fund.
Additionally, the League reports the following fund type:
Internal Service Fund – the Internal Service Fund accounts for the Property
Corporation’s financing of operating and maintaining office space provided to the
League and other governmental entities.
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating
items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and
producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing
operations. The principal operating revenues of the internal service fund are rental
income charged to the League and other governmental entities. Operating expenses for
the internal service fund include the cost of maintaining the facilities and utilities. All
revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating
revenues and expenses.
When restricted, committed, assigned, or unassigned resources are available for use, for
governmental activities it is the League’s policy to use restricted resources first, then
committed, assigned and unassigned resources as they are needed.
D. Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
Resources, and Net Position or Equity
1. Deposits and Investments
Cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits,
cash and investments held by the State Treasurer, and highly liquid investments with
maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition.
State statutes authorize the League to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury and
U.S. agencies, certificates of deposit in eligible depositories, repurchase
agreements, obligations of the State of Arizona or any of its counties or incorporated
cities, towns or duly organized school districts, improvement districts in this state and
the State Treasurer’s Local Government Investment Pool. Investments are stated at
fair value.
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NOTE 1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
D. Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
Resources, and Net Position or Equity (Continued)
2. Receivables
All receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectibles.
3. Prepaid Items
Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods
and are recorded as prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial
statements. Expenditures/expenses are recognized in the fund and government wide
financial statements when the goods or services are received.
4. Capital Assets
Capital assets, which include land, buildings and improvements, and furniture,
fixtures and equipment, are reported in the governmental activities column in the
government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the League as
assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $750 and an estimated useful life in
excess of one year.
Capital assets purchased or acquired are carried at historical cost or estimated
historical cost. Contributed assets are recorded at acquisition value as of the date
received. Additions, improvements and other capital outlays that significantly extend
the useful life of an asset are capitalized. Other costs incurred for repairs and
maintenance are expensed as incurred.
Depreciation on all assets is provided on a straight-line basis over the following
estimated useful lives:
Buildings and Improvements
Furniture, Fixtures, and Equipment

10 to 40 Years
3 to 10 Years

5. Deferred Outflows of Resources
The difference between the expected and actual expenses for its actuarially
determined pension obligation is reported as a deferred outflow of resources and will
be amortized over a five-year period. Additionally, contributions made after the
measurement date for the League’s pension plan are reported as deferred outflows
of resources and will reduce the pension liability in the next fiscal year.
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NOTE 1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
D. Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
Resources, and Net Position or Equity (Continued)
6. Compensated Absences
The liability for compensated absences reported in the government-wide financial
statements consists of unpaid, accumulated leave balances. The liability has been
calculated using the vesting method, in which leave amounts for both employees
who currently are eligible to receive termination payments and other employees who
are expected to become eligible in the future to receive such payments upon
termination.
7. Pension Plans
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources
and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense,
information about the fiduciary net position of the Arizona State Retirement System
(ASRS) and additions to/deductions from ASRS’s fiduciary net position have been
determined on the same basis as they are reported by ASRS. For this purpose,
benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when
due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.
8. Deferred Inflows of Resources
The League reports deferred inflows of resources for pension related inflows that will
be amortized in future periods.
9. Net Position
In the government-wide financial statements, net position is reported in three
categories: net investment in capital assets; restricted net position; and unrestricted
net position. Net investment capital assets are separately reported because the
League reports all of the League assets which make up a significant portion of total
net position. Restricted net position accounts for the portion of net position restricted
by parties outside the League. Unrestricted net position is the remaining net position
not included in the previous two categories. The League reported no restricted
net position.
10. Fund Equity
In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report nonspendable fund
balance for amounts that are not available for appropriation. The League has not
adopted a fund balance policy defining restricted, committed, assigned, and
unassigned fund balances. The League, therefore, does not define the terms under
which committed fund balances become committed or are released from such a
commitment. In addition, the board has not designated an individual or group of
individuals the authority to assign fund balances. The League did not report any
restricted, committed, or assigned fund balances.
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NOTE 2

STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY
A. Budgetary Information
The League’s budget policy provides that the Executive Committee adopt and approve
an annual budget. The budget is a planning and control device; it is not legally binding.
The budget for the General Fund is prepared on the modified accrual basis of
accounting.

NOTE 3

DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS
A. Assets
1. Deposits and Investments
Deposits and investments at June 30, 2020 consist of the following:
Deposits:
Cash in Bank
Investments:
State Treasurer’s Investment Pool
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents

$

215,739

$

2,379,931
2,595,670

Deposits
At June 30, 2020, the carrying amount of the League’s deposits was $215,739 and
the bank balance was $246,712 which was fully insured by federal depository
insurance.
Investments
Investments consist of funds invested with the Local Government Investment Pool,
an external investment pool. The League’s investment, stated at fair value, is not
identified with specific investments.
Interest Rate Risk – The League does not have an investment policy that addresses
interest rate risk; however, the League manages its exposure to declines in fair
values by limiting its investments to the Local Government Investment Pool which
has a weighted average maturity of 25 days.
Credit Risk – The State Board of Deposit provides oversight for the State Treasurer’s
pools, and the Local Government Investment Pool Advisory Committee provides
consultation and advice to the Treasurer. The fair value of a participant’s position in
the pool approximates the value of that participant’s pool shares. The shares are not
identified with specific investments and are not subject to custodial credit risk. The
LGIP maintains a rating of AAA from Moody’s.
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NOTE 3

DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED)
A. Assets (Continued)
1. Deposits and Investments (Continued)
Custodial Credit Risk – For an investment, this is the risk that, in the event of the
failure of the counterparty, the League will not be able to recover the value of its
investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party.
The League currently does not have a policy with regard to custodial credit risk. The
League’s investments consist only of funds deposited with the Local Government
Investment Pool which is overseen by the State Board of Deposits.
2. Capital Assets
Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2020 was as follows:
Beginning
Balance
Governmental Activities:
Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated:
Land

$

Capital Assets, Being Depreciated:
Buildings and Building Improvements
Equipment and Furniture
Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated
Accumulated Depreciation for:
Buildings and Building Improvements
Equipment and Furniture
Total Accumulated Depreciation
Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated, Net
Governmental Activities Capital Assets, Net

$

51,611

Increases

$

-

Ending
Balance

Decreases

$

-

$

51,611

780,604
134,164
914,768

17,106
16,143
33,249

-

797,710
150,307
948,017

(464,746)
(123,539)
(588,285)
326,483
378,094

(35,131)
(7,056)
(42,187)
(8,938)
(8,938)

-

(499,877)
(130,595)
(630,472)
317,545
369,156

$

$

$

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs as follows:
Governmental Activities:
General Government
Internal Service Fund
Total Depreciation Expense,
Governmental Activities

$

6,824
35,363

$

42,187

B. Unearned Revenue
Resources received are recognized as unearned revenue to the extent that the earnings
process has not been completed. These resources are recorded as revenue when the
related obligations have been satisfied. As of June 30, 2020, the League reported
$148,939 of unearned revenue in the governmental funds and $157,994 of unearned
revenue in the governmental activities. Unearned revenue was largely composed of
summer conference registration fees, sponsorship revenues and membership dues.
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NOTE 3

DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED)
C. Obligations Under Operating Leases
The League leases copiers and other equipment under the provisions of long-term lease
agreements classified as operating leases. Rental expenditures under the terms of the
operating leases totaled $3,027 for the year ended June 30, 2020.
The future minimum lease payments for these leases are as follows:
Year Ending June 30,
2021
Total

$

Amount
1,261
1,261

D. Long-Term Debt
The compensated absences are paid entirely by the General Fund of the League.
Changes in compensated absences for the year ended June 30, 2020 are as follows:
Beginning
of Year
Governmental Activities:
Compensated Absences

NOTE 4

$

Additions

99,633

$

133,469

End of
Year

Retirements
$ (129,209)

$

103,893

Due within
One Year
$

103,893

OTHER INFORMATION
A. Risk Management
The League of Arizona Cities and Towns is exposed to various risks of loss related to
torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of assets; errors and omissions, and
natural disasters.
The League carries commercial insurance for all risks of loss, including workers’
compensation and employee health and accident insurance. Settled claims resulting
from these risks have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage during any of the
past three fiscal years and no significant reduction in insurance coverage during the last
fiscal year.
B. Economic Dependence
The League receives 67% of its revenues from membership dues and 17% from its
annual conference. The League’s operations depend on continued support from these
funding sources.
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NOTE 4

OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
C. Commitments
On December 20, 2019 and May 29, 2020, the League signed commitments with two
hotels for the 2022 and 2023 Annual Conferences. At June 30, 2020, the League is
liable for $247,313 if the League cancels the agreements.
D. Retirement Plans
The League contributes to the Arizona Statement Retirement System pension plan
described below. The plan is a component unit of the State of Arizona. At June 30, 2020,
the League reported the following amounts related to the pension plan to which it
contributes:
Statement of Net Position and
Statement of Activities
Net Pension Liability
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Pension Expense

Governmental
Activities
$
1,896,017
231,544
199,798
178,917

Arizona State Retirement System
Plan Descriptions – League employees participate in the Arizona State Retirement
System (ASRS). The ASRS administers a cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined
benefit pension plan; a cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit health insurance
premium benefit (OPEB), and a cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit longterm disability (OPEB). The Arizona State Retirement System Board governs the ASRS
according to the provisions of A.R.S. Title 38, Chapter 5, Articles 2 and 2.1. The ASRS
issues a publicly available financial report that includes its financial statements and
required supplementary information. The report is available on its website at
www.azasrs.gov.
The OPEB is not included in the League’s financial statements due to the OPEB Liability
being immaterial to the League.
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NOTE 4

OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
D. Retirement Plans (Continued)
Arizona State Retirement System (Continued)
Benefits Provided – The ASRS provides retirement, health insurance premium
supplement, long-term disability, and survivor benefits. State statute establishes benefit
terms. Retirement benefits are calculated on the basis of age, average monthly
compensation, and service credit as follows:
Before
July 1, 2011
Sum of years and age equals 80
10 years age 62
5 year age 50*
any years age 65

On or After
July 1, 2011
30 years age 55
25 years age 60
10 years age 62
5 years age 50*
any years age 65

Final average
salary is based on

Highest 36 Months
of last 120 months

Highest 60 months
of last 120 months

Benefit percentage
per year of service

2.1% to 2.3 %

2.1% to 2.3 %

Years of service
and age required
to receive benefit

* With actuarially reduced benefits

Retirement benefits for members who joined the ASRS prior to September 13, 2013, are
subject to automatic cost-of-living adjustments based on excess investment earnings.
Members with a membership date on or after September 13, 2013, are not eligible for
cost-of-living adjustments. Survivor benefits are payable upon a member’s death. For
retired members, the survivor benefit is determined by the retirement benefit option
chosen. For all other members, the beneficiary is entitled to the member’s account
balance that includes the member’s contributions and employer’s contributions, plus
interest earned.
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NOTE 4

OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
D. Retirement Plans (Continued)
Arizona State Retirement System (Continued)
Contributions – In accordance with state statutes, annual actuarial valuations
determine active member and employer contribution requirements. The combined active
member and employer contribution rates are expected to finance the costs of benefits
employees earn during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded
accrued liability. For the year ended June 30, 2020, active ASRS members were
required by statute to contribute at the actuarially determined rate of 11.94% of the
members’ annual covered payroll, and the League was required by statute to contribute
at the actuarially determined rate of 11.45% of the active members’ annual covered
payroll. In addition, the League was required by statute to contribute at the actuarially
determined rate of 10.29% of annual covered payroll of retired members who worked for
the League in positions that would typically be filled by an employee who contributes to
the ASRS. The League’s contributions to the pension plan for the year ended
June 30, 2020, were $156,867.
During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, the League paid all ASRS pension
contributions out of the General Fund.
Pension Liability – At June 30, 2020, the League reported a liability of $1,896,017 for
its proportionate share of the ASRS’ net pension liability. The net pension liability was
measured as of June 30, 2019. The total pension liability used to calculate the net
pension liability was determined using update procedures to roll forward the total
pension liability from an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2018, to the measurement
date of June 30, 2019.
The League’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on the League’s FY 2019
contributions. The League’s proportion measured as of June 30, 2019, was 0.01303%,
which was a decrease of 0.00082% from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2018.
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NOTE 4

OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
D. Retirement Plans (Continued)
Arizona State Retirement System (Continued)
Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources – For the year ended
June 30, 2020, the League recognized pension expense for ASRS of $178,917. At
June 30, 2020, the League reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows
of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Differences Between Expected and Actual Experience
Change in Assumptions
Net Difference Between Projected and Actual Earnings
on Pension Plan Investments
Changes in Proportion and Differences Between League
Contributions and Proportionate Share of Contributions
Contributions Subsequent to the Measurement Date
Total

Deferred
Outflows of
Resources
$
34,252
8,015

Deferred
Inflows of
Resources
$
356
75,503

-

42,616

32,410
156,867
231,544

81,323
199,798

$

$

The $156,867 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to ASRS pensions
resulting from the League contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be
recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ending June 30, 2021.
Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to ASRS pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:
Year Ending June 30,
2021
2022
2023
2024
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Amount
(40,004)
(88,347)
(8,184)
11,414
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NOTE 4

OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
D. Retirement Plans (Continued)
Arizona State Retirement System (Continued)
Actuarial Assumptions – The significant actuarial assumptions used to measure the
total pension liability are as follows:
Actuarial Valuation Date
Actuarial Roll Forward Date
Actuarial Cost Method
Discount Rate
Projected Salary Increases
Inflation
Permanent Benefit Increase
Mortality Rates

June 30, 2018
June 30, 2019
Entry Age Normal
7.5%
2.7 - 7.2%
2.3%
Included
2017 SRA Scale U-MP

Actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2018 valuation were based on the results of
an actuarial study for the 5-year period ended June 30, 2016.
The long-term expected rate of return on ASRS pension plan investments was
determined to be 7.5% using a building block method in which best-estimate ranges of
expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment
expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are
combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected
future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding
expected inflation. The target allocation and best estimates of geometric real rates of
return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table:

Target
Allocation

Asset Class

50%
20
10
20
100%

Equity
Credit
Interest rate sensitive bonds
Real Estate
Total
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Long-term
Expected
Geometric Real
Rate of Return

6.09%
5.36
1.62
5.85
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NOTE 4

OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
D. Retirement Plans (Continued)
Arizona State Retirement System (Continued)
Discount Rate – At June 30, 2019, the discount rate used to measure the ASRS total
pension liability was 7.5%. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount
rate assumed that contributions from participating employers will be made based on the
actuarially determined rates based on the ASRS Board’s funding policy, which
establishes the contractually required rate under Arizona statutes. Based on those
assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to
make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the
long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods
of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.
Sensitivity of the League’s Proportionate Share of the ASRS Net Pension Liability
to Changes in the Discount Rate – The following table presents the League’s
proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the discount rate of 7.5%,
as well as what the League’s proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it
were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower (6.5%) or
1 percentage point higher (8.5%) than the current rate.
Current
Discount
Rate
(7.5%)

1% Decrease
(6.5%)
The League’s Proportionate Share of the
Net Pension Liability

$

2,698,471

$

1,896,017

1% Increase
(8.5%)
$

1,225,371

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position – Detailed information about the pension plan’s
fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued ASRS financial report.
E. Contingencies
On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization declared the spread of Coronavirus
Disease (COVID-19) a worldwide pandemic. As a result, the League of Arizona Cities
and Towns cancelled the 2020 League Annual Conference at the Renaissance in
Glendale scheduled to begin on August 31, 2020. The COVID-19 pandemic is having
significant effects on global markets, supply chains, businesses, and communities.
Management believes the League of Arizona Cities and Towns is taking appropriate
actions to mitigate the negative impact. However, the full impact of COVID-19 is
unknown and cannot be reasonably estimated and is still developing.
F. Subsequent Events
Subsequent to June 30, 2020, the League canceled its 2020 Annual Conference.

(33)

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

LEAGUE OF ARIZONA CITIES AND TOWNS
SCHEDULE OF THE LEAGUE’S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET
PENSION LIABILITY AND CONTRIBUTIONS
ARIZONA STATE RETIREMENT SYSTEM (ASRS) PLAN
2020 AND SIX YEARS PRIOR

Fiscal Year
(Measurement Date)
2020
(2019)

2019
(2018)

2018
(2017)

2017
(2016)

2016
(2015)

2015
(2014)

2014
(2013)**

0.013030%

0.013850%

0.013230%

0.013370%

0.012749%

0.011847%

0.012466%

League’s Proportion of the
Net Pension Liability
League’s Proportionate Share of the
Net Pension Liability

$

1,896,017

$

1,931,588

$ 2,060,976

$ 2,158,052

$ 1,985,850

$ 1,753,013

$ 2,072,421

League’s Covered Payroll

$

1,423,875

$

1,438,882

$ 1,279,852

$ 1,219,254

$ 1,217,272

$ 1,152,870

N/A *

N/A *

League’s Proportionate Share of the
Net Pension Liability as a Percentage
of its Covered Payroll
Plan Fiduciary Net Positon as a Percentage
of the Total Pension Liability

133.16%

134.24%

161.03%

177.00%

163.14%

152.06%

73.24%

73.40%

69.92%

67.06%

68.35%

69.49%

2020
156,867

2019
150,831

2018
$ 143,194

Fiscal Year
2017
$ 128,672

150,831

143,194

128,672

$

-

$

-

League’s Covered Payroll

$

1,440,064

$

1,423,875

$ 1,438,882

$ 1,279,852

$ 1,219,254

$ 1,217,272

$ 1,152,870

10.59%

9.95%

10.05%

10.61%

10.51%

9.91%

10.89%

* Information was not available.
** Information prior to the June 30, 2013 measurement date was not available.

(34)

-

$

-

129,371
$

-

$

2014
114,272

Contribution Deficiency (Excess)

$

$

2015
127,877

$

156,867

$

2016
129,371

Contractually Required Contribution
Contributions in Relation to the Contractually
Required Contribution

Contributions as a Percentage of Covered Payroll

$

57.28%

127,877
$

-

114,272
$

-

GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS REPORT

THIS PAGE BLANK

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Directors
League of Arizona Cities and Towns
Phoenix, Arizona
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the League of Arizona
Cities and Towns (League), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the League’s basic financial statements, and have
issued our report thereon dated October 27, 2020.
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the League of Arizona
Cities and Towns’ internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
League’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the
League’s internal control.
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the League’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Board of Directors
League of Arizona Cities and Towns

Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the League of Arizona Cities and Towns’
financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which
could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and,
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.
Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
League’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the League’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

a
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP
Phoenix, Arizona
October 27, 2020
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Investment advisory services are offered through CliftonLarsonAllen Wealth Advisors, LLC,
an SEC-registered investment advisor. | CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING
Friday, November 20, 2020

Agenda Item #6

Resolutions of Appreciation / Life Membership

Summary:

Resolutions of Appreciation are enclosed for action by the Executive
Committee for the following:
• Mayor Doug Von Gausig of Clarkdale (term expires Nov 10, 2020)
• Mayor Coral Evans of Flagstaff (term expires Dec 2020)
• Former Mayor Jenn Daniels of Gilbert (resigned Aug 11, 2020)
• Mayor Jim Lane of Scottsdale (term expires Jan 12, 2021)
• Mayor Daryl Seymore of Show Low (term expires Dec 1, 2020)
• Mayor Bob Rivera of Thatcher (retiring Dec 2020)
• Mayor Anna Tovar of Tolleson (term expires Dec 8, 2020)
Per the League Charter, the Executive Committee may designate
individuals to be a Life Member of the League. By tradition, past
presidents and long-term members of the League are granted Life
Membership by the Executive Committee. The resolution for Past
Pesident Doug Von Gausig is enclosed for action by the Executive
Committee. Additionally, a resolution for Bob Rivera, the second
longest serving member in the history of the Executive Committee, is
enclosed for action by the Executive Committee.

Responsible Person:

President Cathy Carlat

Attachments:

Resolutions of Appreciation
Life Member Resolutions

Action Requested:

Approval

RESOLUTION OF APPRECIATION FOR
Doug Von Gausig
A RESOLUTION EXPRESSING THE APPRECIATION OF THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OF THE LEAGUE
OF ARIZONA CITIES AND TOWNS TO DOUG VON GAUSIG FOR HIS DEDICATED SERVICE TO LOCAL
GOVERNMENT IN ARIZONA.
WHEREAS, DOUG VON GAUSIG served the citizens of the Town of Clarkdale for sixteen
years as Mayor; and
WHEREAS, DOUG VON GAUSIG has provided dedicated service to the League as a
member of the Executive Committee from 2008-2020; and
WHEREAS, DOUG VON GAUSIG served as an officer of the League from 2010-2014
beginning with the post of Vice President in 2010 and culminating in service as President from
2012-2014; and
WHEREAS, DOUG VON GAUSIG served on or chaired the League Resolutions Committee,
the League Nominating Committee and other special League committees; and
WHEREAS, DOUG VON GAUSIG was an active participant in Arizona and National League
of Cities meetings and conferences as a speaker and a presiding officer; and
WHEREAS, DOUG VON GAUSIG made frequent trips to the Capitol at the request of the
League to meet with Legislators and the Governor and was always available to provide support,
counsel and advice to League staff,
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the appreciation of the League of Arizona Cities
and Towns be extended to DOUG VON GAUSIG for his dedicated service to local government in
Arizona and to the League.

RESOLUTION OF APPRECIATION FOR
Coral Evans
A RESOLUTION EXPRESSING THE APPRECIATION OF THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OF THE LEAGUE
OF ARIZONA CITIES AND TOWNS TO CORAL EVANS FOR HER DEDICATED SERVICE TO LOCAL
GOVERNMENT IN ARIZONA.
WHEREAS, CORAL EVANS served the citizens of the City of Flagstaff for eight years on
the council and four years as Mayor; and
WHEREAS, CORAL EVANS has provided dedicated service to the League as a member of
the Executive Committee from 2017-2020; and
WHEREAS, CORAL EVANS served on or chaired the League Resolutions Committee, the
League Nominating Committee and other special League committees; and
WHEREAS, CORAL EVANS was an active participant in Arizona and National League of
Cities meetings and conferences as a speaker and a presiding officer; and
WHEREAS, CORAL EVANS made frequent trips to the Capitol at the request of the League
to meet with Legislators and was always available to provide support, counsel and advice to
League staff,
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the appreciation of the League of Arizona Cities
and Towns be extended to CORAL EVANS for her dedicated service to local government in
Arizona and to the League.

RESOLUTION OF APPRECIATION FOR
Jenn Daniels
A RESOLUTION EXPRESSING THE APPRECIATION OF THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OF THE LEAGUE
OF ARIZONA CITIES AND TOWNS TO JENN DANIELS FOR HER DEDICATED SERVICE TO LOCAL
GOVERNMENT IN ARIZONA.
WHEREAS, JENN DANIELS served the citizens of the City of Gilbert for seven years on the
council and four years as Mayor; and
WHEREAS, JENN DANIELS has provided dedicated service to the League as a member of
the Executive Committee from 2016-2020; and
WHEREAS, JENN DANIELS served on or chaired the League Resolutions Committee, the
League Nominating Committee and other special League committees; and
WHEREAS, JENN DANIELS was an active participant in Arizona and National League of
Cities meetings and conferences as a speaker and a presiding officer; and
WHEREAS, JENN DANIELS made frequent trips to the Capitol at the request of the League
to meet with Legislators and the Governor and was always available to provide support, counsel
and advice to League staff,
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the appreciation of the League of Arizona Cities
and Towns be extended to JENN DANIELS for her dedicated service to local government in
Arizona and to the League.

RESOLUTION OF APPRECIATION FOR
Jim Lane
A RESOLUTION EXPRESSING THE APPRECIATION OF THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OF THE LEAGUE
OF ARIZONA CITIES AND TOWNS TO JIM LANE FOR HIS DEDICATED SERVICE TO LOCAL
GOVERNMENT IN ARIZONA.
WHEREAS, JIM LANE served the citizens of the City of Scottsdale for five years on the
council and eleven years as Mayor; and
WHEREAS, JIM LANE has provided dedicated service to the League as a member of the
Executive Committee from 2009-2020; and
WHEREAS, JIM LANE served on or chaired the League Resolutions Committee, the
League Nominating Committee and other special League committees; and
WHEREAS, JIM LANE was an active participant in Arizona and National League of Cities
meetings and conferences as a speaker and a presiding officer; and
WHEREAS, JIM LANE made frequent trips to the Capitol at the request of the League to
meet with Legislators and the Governor and was always available to provide support, counsel
and advice to League staff,
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the appreciation of the League of Arizona Cities
and Towns be extended to JIM LANE for his dedicated service to local government in Arizona
and to the League.

RESOLUTION OF APPRECIATION FOR
Daryl Seymore
A RESOLUTION EXPRESSING THE APPRECIATION OF THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OF THE LEAGUE
OF ARIZONA CITIES AND TOWNS TO DARYL SEYMORE FOR HIS DEDICATED SERVICE TO LOCAL
GOVERNMENT IN ARIZONA.
WHEREAS, DARYL SEYMORE served the citizens of the City of Show Low for eight years
on the council and eight years as Mayor; and
WHEREAS, DARYL SEYMORE has provided dedicated service to the League as a member
of the Executive Committee from 2014-2020; and
WHEREAS, DARYL SEYMORE served on or chaired the League Resolutions Committee,
the League Nominating Committee and other special League committees; and
WHEREAS, DARYL SEYMORE was an active participant in Arizona and National League
of Cities meetings and conferences as a speaker and a presiding officer; and
WHEREAS, DARYL SEYMORE made frequent trips to the Capitol at the request of the
League to meet with Legislators and was always available to provide support, counsel and advice
to League staff,
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the appreciation of the League of Arizona Cities
and Towns be extended to DARYL SEYMORE for his dedicated service to local government in
Arizona and to the League.

RESOLUTION OF APPRECIATION FOR
Bob Rivera
A RESOLUTION EXPRESSING THE APPRECIATION OF THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OF THE LEAGUE
OF ARIZONA CITIES AND TOWNS TO BOB RIVERA FOR HIS DEDICATED SERVICE TO LOCAL
GOVERNMENT IN ARIZONA.
WHEREAS, BOB RIVERA served the citizens of the Town of Thatcher for twelve years on
the council and sixteen years as Mayor; and
WHEREAS, BOB RIVERA has provided dedicated service to the League as a member of the
Executive Committee from 2003-2020; and
WHEREAS, BOB RIVERA served on or chaired the League Resolutions Committee, the
League Nominating Committee and other special League committees; and
WHEREAS, BOB RIVERA was an active participant in Arizona and National League of
Cities meetings and conferences as a speaker and a presiding officer; and
WHEREAS, BOB RIVERA made frequent trips to the Capitol at the request of the League to
meet with Legislators and was always available to provide support, counsel and advice to League
staff,
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the appreciation of the League of Arizona Cities
and Towns be extended to BOB RIVERA for his dedicated service to local government in Arizona
and to the League.

RESOLUTION OF APPRECIATION FOR
Anna Tovar
A RESOLUTION EXPRESSING THE APPRECIATION OF THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OF THE LEAGUE
OF ARIZONA CITIES AND TOWNS TO ANNA TOVAR FOR HER DEDICATED SERVICE TO LOCAL
GOVERNMENT IN ARIZONA.
WHEREAS, ANNA TOVAR served the citizens of the City of Tolleson for eight years on the
council and four years as Mayor; and
WHEREAS, ANNA TOVAR was a good friend to cities and towns and a trusted advocate for
local control during her four years in the Arizona State House of Representatives and two years
in the Arizona State Senate; and
WHEREAS, ANNA TOVAR has provided dedicated service to the League as a member of
the Executive Committee from 2018-2020; and
WHEREAS, ANNA TOVAR served on or chaired the League Resolutions Committee and
other special League committees; and
WHEREAS, ANNA TOVAR was an active participant in Arizona and National League of
Cities meetings and conferences as a speaker and a presiding officer; and
WHEREAS, ANNA TOVAR made frequent trips to the Capitol at the request of the League
to meet with Legislators and was always available to provide support, counsel and advice to
League staff,
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the appreciation of the League of Arizona Cities
and Towns be extended to ANNA TOVAR for her dedicated service to local government in
Arizona and to the League.

LIFE MEMBERSHIP RESOLUTION FOR
DOUG VON GAUSIG
A RESOLUTION CONFERRING LIFE MEMBERSHIP IN THE LEAGUE OF ARIZONA
CITIES AND TOWNS TO FORMER PRESIDENT DOUG VON GAUSIG.
WHEREAS, DOUG VON GAUSIG provided outstanding leadership
as President of the League from 2012-2014; and
WHEREAS, DOUG VON GAUSIG began his service to the League
as a member of the Executive Committee in 2008 and served as Vice President
prior to assuming the office of President in 2012; and
WHEREAS, DOUG VON GAUSIG served the Town of Clarkdale
for sixteen years as Mayor which exemplifies his dedication to local government
and to his Town;
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Executive
Committee bestows Life Membership in the League of Arizona Cities and Towns
upon DOUG VON GAUSIG.

LIFE MEMBERSHIP RESOLUTION FOR
BOB RIVERA
A RESOLUTION CONFERRING LIFE MEMBERSHIP IN THE LEAGUE OF ARIZONA
CITIES AND TOWNS TO BOB RIVERA.
WHEREAS, BOB RIVERA began his service to the League as a
member of the Executive Committee from 2003 to the present; and
WHEREAS, BOB RIVERA served the Town of Thatcher as a
member of the council and then mayor for twenty-eight years which exemplifies
his dedication to local government and to his Town;
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Executive Committee
bestows Life Membership in the League of Arizona Cities and Towns upon BOB
RIVERA.

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING
Friday, November 20, 2020

Agenda Item #7

League Strategic Plan Update

Summary:

League staff will provide a review of the strategic plan and highlight
specific items of interest to the Executive Committee. A work plan for
2021 will be provided at the February meeting.

Responsible Person:

Tom Belshe

Attachments:

Strategic Plan
Social Media PowerPoint

Mission Statement:
The League of Arizona Cities and Towns
advocates for the protection of local
authority and the resources integral to
municipal governance through targeted
communications, topical trainings and
professional development, data-driven
decision-making, and strengthened
relationships with government, business
and community partners.

Lead:

Boldly and proactively drive policy on
behalf of Arizona’s cities and towns.
• Continuously enhance our ability to
anticipate important municipal policy
issues and to adapt to changing
political and social environments
• Proactively work with legislators to
propose legislation that addresses
issues impacting cities and towns
• Increase awareness, understanding,
respect and support for the office and
duties of local elected officials
• Increase support for the local government
at the state legislature by acknowledging
legislators who support League priorities
• Encourage and facilitate member
contributions to legislative policy
development

Promote:

Raise visibility of the critical role of
local government.

• Capitalize on the public’s trust in local
elected officials to shape narrative
about cities and towns through
increased and targeted use of
social, print and earned media
• Create partnerships with like-minded
civic groups
• Expand our capacity to identify and
distribute positive content from our
cities and towns
• Empower members to be leaders on
municipal issues and advocate for
League policies and positions
• Find new and appropriate opportunities
to bolster promotional efforts of
League members and staff
• Facilitate opportunities for members
to serve on state and national boards,
committees, associations and organizations

Educate:

Model and inspire excellent and
effective city and town leadership.
• Increase member awareness of the
League’s robust educational offerings
• Continue to evolve and deliver
best-in-class conferences, in-house
trainings and online educational
opportunities for members
• Facilitate professional development
including statutory compliance
awareness with the professional
development associations for city
and town managers, finance
directors, clerks and attorneys
• Create additional opportunities for
cities and towns to share and learn
about best practices, policy trends
and legal developments

Empower:

Develop and champion high-quality
solutions to help cities and towns thrive.

• Expand capacity to collect, share and provide
visualization of data on city and town issues
and trends to demonstrate the vital role of
municipal government
• Continue to strengthen the League’s role as
the technical assistance leader for member
cities, and be the acknowledged source of
verifiable information on municipal issues
• Use enhanced data to continually improve
technical publications
• Identify and create new resources to address
the evolving needs of cities and towns

Engage:

Seek inclusiveness and provide
meaningful engagement
opportunities to all members.

• Evaluate League structures and
practices to increase member
participation and build a strong
continuity in League leadership
• Create opportunities for cities and
towns to strengthen our partnerships
with:
o Legislators and legislative staff
o State government leadership
and agencies
o National organizations supporting
municipal government
o Corporations and corporate
advocacy groups
o Employee retirement organizations
o Neighborhood groups
• Coordinate effort to provide tools and
resources for mayors and councilmembers
seeking legislative office

Deliver:

Maximize organizational effectiveness.

• Review programs and initiatives to ensure
equitable access and value by members
• Ensure the ongoing fiscal health of
the organization
• Position and organize members of the League
Executive Committee to serve as advocates for
League positions, programs and offerings
• Advance the League’s infrastructure, systems
and technology to support operational needs
and to deliver an excellent member experience
• Maintain a culture that values member
needs, transparency, strategic focus and
organizational responsiveness
• Foster a collaborative and equitable work
environment, investing to attract and retrain
highly qualified staff

Boldly and proactively drive policy
on behalf
of Arizona’s cities
and towns.
Raise visibility
of the critical
role of local government.

Maximize
organizational
effectiveness.

Seek inclusiveness
and provide
meaningful engagement
opportunities to
all members.

Model and inspire
excellent and
effective city and
town leadership.

Develop and champion
high-quality solutions
to help cities and
towns thrive.

League of Arizona Cities & Towns
Social Media Analysis
May 2020 – October 2020

Presented to Arizona Dispensaries Association
February 6, 2018
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Areas of Focus
•
•
•
•
•
•

COVID – 19 Response
Cities and Towns Week 2020
League Annual Conference 2020
#CitiesAreEssential Initiative
#AZCitiesCare Initiative
Strengthened brand awareness and
established brand identity

Updated
strategic plan
goals:

a. Actively engage digital platforms to become
an opinion leader
b. Amplify awareness of partner
programs/internal leadership
c. Support local governments via promotion &
advocacy leading to increased member
participation
d. Provide accurate, critical updates and vital
community resources

Strategic Plan Implementation A:
Actively engage digital platforms
to become an opinion leader
• Leading conversations with:
• Elected Officials
• Other industry opinion
leaders
• Media outlets

Strategic Plan Implementation B:
Amplify awareness of partner
programs & internal leadership
• Magnify League leadership
press coverage enhancing the
League’s brand perception as
both valued and valuable
• Cross promote partner
programs & public facing
engagements

Strategic Plan Implementation C:
Support local governments via
promotion & advocacy
• Conveys an element of value to
members
• Generate customized, exclusive
content for cities/towns that might
not otherwise have the tools to
create assets on their own
• Messaging strategy that strategically
targets the local gov audience
segment and encourages them to
share and engage with the League
• #AZCitiesCare initiative

Strategic Plan Implementation D:
Provide accurate, critical updates
and vital community resources
• Publicize critical up to date
information and data
• The union of all these
elements creates a cohesive
brand identity, positioning the
League as a go-to resource for
comprehensive and factual
information
• #CitiesAreEssential initiative

#LACT20 Activated Local Government

• Uptick in activity from newly elected officials, Mayors, councilmembers and community leaders during LACT ‘20.

#LACT Twitter Analysis

Since the the 2019 conference posting activity increased by 27 posts, impressions increased by 29,882 and
engagements increased by 1,245. The graphs indicate a more consistent pace of growth across the board meaning
our gained followers are interacting with our account and content on a more regular basis. We saw a substantial
jump in retweets and Other Post Clicks this is the number of times that users clicked on the content in your posts,
excluding the link, this includes clicks on the media, hashtags, detail expand, and user profile from your posts.

#LACT Facebook Analysis

Since the the 2019 conference posting increased by 14 posts. Impressions
increased by 22,355, engagements increased by 1,912.

#AZCityWeek Activated Local Engagement

• Rise in engagement from various local leaders that have not previously been digitally active during #AZCityWeek

#AZCityWeek Twitter Analysis

Compared to 2019 we posted 19 additional customized content pieces that includes videos and
still assets. Impressions increased by 16,459, engagements increased by 591.

#AZCityWeek Facebook Analysis

Since the the 2019 AZ City Week posting increased by 24 posts. Impressions increased by 5,194,
and while engagements decreased by 14 our followers were more actively “engaged” with the
posts garnering more shares, link clicks and opting to explore more via “other post clicks.”

Programs & Initiatives
Generated a branded, Arizona specific hashtag #AZCitiesCare to call attention to the essential services and employees provided by cities and towns during the COVID pandemic.
Assisted in promoting additional initiatives like: National League of Cities #CitiesAreEssential, Arizona Commerce Authority Small Business Bootcamp , ASBA CARES ACT, Arizona
Restaurant Association “Welcome Back to the Table” & #AZTakeoutWeek and updated COVID guidance.

New Video Concepts
Promotional Candid & Whiteboard Animation

COVID
related video
content

Additional
video
content

Overall Performance
Posts with the highest number of times users interacted with a post (click, like, retweet etc.) over 6-month period

Cross-Network Performance
Comparison of Twitter and Facebook over 6-month time period.

Key
Takeaways:

The League continues to see substantial increases in social media
audience activity.
• The League’s content continues to gain new traction with opinion
leaders, national groups, local leaders, Mayors, and local
governments.
• Twitter has consistently been the top performing medium, but
during COVID we saw a massive bump across all key performance
indicators for the League’s Facebook page.
Ensuring that all content in the Leagues brand range have a
consistent name, visual identity and credibility.
• Using identifiable colors, fonts, logo inclusion and video
animations the League established recognizable brand attributes.
• Transformed social accounts to be a physical representation of
the League’s offerings, value and policy positions.
• Promotion of League leadership events/press to amplify brand
equity; assets measured by the quality of public awareness and
influence.
• During this 6-month time period the League published 86 videos,
both long and short form.

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING
Friday, November 20, 2020

Agenda Item #8

Executive Session: Executive Director Review

Summary:

Pursuant to A.R.S. 38-431.03(A) 1, the Executive Committee will meet in
Executive Session to discuss the annual performance evaluation of League
Executive Director Tom Belshe.

Responsible Person:

President Cathy Carlat

Attachment:

Executive session materials will be provided the day before the meeting.

Additional Informational Materials
Not Part of the Agenda
League Budget Report
Property Corporation Budget Report

League of Arizona Cities & Towns
FY 2019-2020 Budget vs. Actual
July through October 2020
Jul - Oct 20
Ordinary Income/Expense
Income
4000 · Affiliate Group Contribution
4010 · Dues
4020 · Miscellaneous
4016 · Partnership Programs
4030 · Risk Pool
4035 · Seminars & Meetings
4040 · Interest Income
Total Income
Expense
5005 · Annual Conference (Expense)
5010 · Benefits
5015 · Capital Outlay
5030 · Equipment Rental & Maintenance
5035 · Executive Committee
5050 · Insurance
5055 · Postage & Shipping
5057 · PR & Communications
5060 · Printing
5065 · Professional Services
5065-1 · Accounting Services
5065-3 · Legal Services
5065-2 · Contract Lobbying & Consul...
Total 5065 · Professional Services
5070 · Rent
5071 · Salaries
5075 · Seminars and Meetings
5085 · Subscriptions & Dues
5090 · Supplies
5095 · Telecommunications
5100 · Travel
5115 · Prop Corp-Bldg Improvement Fu...
Total Expense
Net Ordinary Income
Net Income

Budget

$ Over Budget

% of Budget

34,487.44
1,875,236.00
2,075.00
1,694.08
82,311.52
8,605.00

137,950.00
1,875,056.00
14,000.00
55,000.00
160,000.00
40,000.00

-103,462.56
180.00
-11,925.00
-53,305.92
-77,688.48
-31,395.00

25.0%
100.0%
14.8%
3.1%
51.4%
21.5%

1,362.48

55,000.00

-53,637.52

2.5%

2,005,771.52

2,337,006.00

-331,234.48

85.8%

1,550.73
173,145.43

20,000.00
547,000.00

-18,449.27
-373,854.57

7.8%
31.7%

2,247.30

10,000.00

-7,752.70

22.5%

1,895.32
0.00
4,394.44
5.70
15,875.00
90.90

9,000.00
8,000.00
9,000.00
6,000.00
51,000.00
10,000.00

-7,104.68
-8,000.00
-4,605.56
-5,994.30
-35,125.00
-9,909.10

21.1%
0.0%
48.8%
0.1%
31.1%
0.9%

20,515.86
5,000.00
49,600.00

48,000.00
12,000.00
165,000.00

-27,484.14
-7,000.00
-115,400.00

42.7%
41.7%
30.1%

75,115.86

225,000.00

-149,884.14

33.4%

35,000.00
476,421.73
863.02

105,000.00
1,450,000.00
48,000.00

-70,000.00
-973,578.27
-47,136.98

33.3%
32.9%
1.8%

39,472.14
2,065.86

63,000.00
38,000.00

-23,527.86
-35,934.14

62.7%
5.4%

5,555.54
0.00
0.00

24,000.00
20,000.00
10,000.00

-18,444.46
-20,000.00
-10,000.00

23.1%
0.0%
0.0%

833,698.97

2,653,000.00

-1,819,301.03

31.4%

1,172,072.55

-315,994.00

1,488,066.55

-370.9%

1,172,072.55

-315,994.00

1,488,066.55

-370.9%

Property Corporation

FY 2019-2020 Budget vs. Actual
July through October 2020
Jul - Oct 20
Ordinary Income/Expense
Income
4003 · Building Improvement Fund
4000 · Rental Income
4005 · Miscellaneous
4010 · Interest

Budget

$ Over Budget

% of Budget

0.00
50,640.80
0.00
4.88

10,000.00
119,400.00
1,500.00
50.00

-10,000.00
-68,759.20
-1,500.00
-45.12

0.0%
42.4%
0.0%
9.8%

Total Income

50,645.68

130,950.00

-80,304.32

38.7%

Expense
5000 · Maintenance Services/Agreements
5015 · Utilities
5020 · Repairs and Maintenance
5025 · Operating Expenses
5030 · Accounting and Auditing
5035 · Insurance
5040 · Capital Outlay

13,494.65
8,741.47
3,752.92
738.91
4,105.00
3,188.00
0.00

35,000.00
34,000.00
12,000.00
5,000.00
7,400.00
5,500.00
21,000.00

-21,505.35
-25,258.53
-8,247.08
-4,261.09
-3,295.00
-2,312.00
-21,000.00

38.6%
25.7%
31.3%
14.8%
55.5%
58.0%
0.0%

Total Expense

34,020.95

119,900.00

-85,879.05

28.4%

16,624.73

11,050.00

5,574.73

150.5%

16,624.73

11,050.00

5,574.73

150.5%

Net Ordinary Income
Net Income

